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THE GOVERNMENT OF
HONG KONG SPECIAL ADMINISTRATIVE REGION
Commission of Inquiry into
Excess Lead Found in Drinking Water
Re: Ho Biu Kee Construction Engineering Company Limited
WITNESS STATEMENT OF WONG Wai Ping (EHEENE)
I, WONG Wai Ping (=RE;E) (Hong Kong ID No.: K719395(5)),

Personal Assistant to Managing Director, of Unit 605, Tins

Enterprises Centre, 777 Lai Chi Kok Road, Cheung Sha Wan,

Kowloon, Hong Kong make this witness statement for the purpose

of providing answers to those questions raised by Messrs.

Lo & Lo (solicitors for the Commission of Inquiry into Excess

Lead in Drinking Water) in their letter dated 10t December
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2015 to Messrs. Chiu, Szeto & Cheng (solicitors for Ho Biu
Kee Construction Engineering Company Limited) and will say

as follows:

1. Question

Describe the positions held by them in Ho Biu Kee and

their scope of duties and responsibilities.

Answer

(a) I amthe Personal Assistant to the Managing Director
Mr. Ho Man Piu of Ho Biu Kee Construction
Engineering Company Limited ("Ho Bin Kee" or "the
Company") . I oversee the work of Ms Jess CHIU ("Ms
Chiu") who is the Head of the Purchasing Department
and the two other staff in the Purchasing
Department, namely, Ms CHAN Wai Ling, Catlin ([f
HF%) ("Catlin") who joined Ho Biu Kee in March 2012
and Ms. TSANG Tsz Him, Purple (%'Z&5E) ("Purple™)
who only joined Ho Biu Kee in April 2015. Both

Catlin and Purple worked under Ms Chiu and received

assignment from her from time to time.

(b) Within Ho Biu Kee, Mr. Kevin KWONG ("Mr. Kwong")
is responsible for tendering and planning for the
plumbing and drainage works in all building
projects which included the 2 Estates (i.e. Kai
Ching Estate and Kwai Luen Estate). Fresh water
plumbing system was one of the items of works to
be undertaken by Ho Biu Kee. After the tender was

successful and sub-contracts were awarded to Ho Biu
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Kee by the main contractors, Mr. Kwong was then
responsible for the submission of plumbing
materials (covering copper pipe & fittings, valves
and solder material etc.). In respect of the 2
Estates, I understand that following the usual
practice, Mr. Kwong also arranged samples of
materials such as pipes, valves, fittings etc. to
the main contractor of these 2 Estates (i.e. China
State for Kai Ching Estate and Shui On for Kwai Luen
Estate) .

(c) Upon obtaining the approval of the HD, Mr. Kwong
would provide the qguantity of the materials
anticipated in the plumbing sub- contracts to Ms
Chiu (under measurable items) who would seek quotes
from suppliers. Ms Chiu would then prepare price
comparison for Mr. Ho Man Piu vetting and
consideration so that he could decide which
materials suppliers Ho Biu Kee should place order
with for their supply and delivery of these
materials. However, as soldering materials were
sundry items and the quantities of them would vary
depending on the workmanship of workers, there was
no supply contract for them with material

suppliers.

(d) When purchase orders would be issued depends on the
works progress on site. From time to time, the
supervisor/officer-in-charge would notify the
Purchasing Department through written purchase
requests how much materials would be ordered and

when they should be delivered to site.

(e) Regarding the sundry materials for the fresh water

plumbing system, the requirement (including what
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materials, quantity and when required) was stated
by the supervisor/officer-in-charge of the site.
These sundry materials included soldering
material. They usually sent purchase requests to
the Purchasing Department of Ho Biu Kee for placing

orders with suppliers.

(f) When requests for purchase of sundry materials were
received by the Purchase Department, purchase
orders would be prepared and issued to material
suppliers for delivery to site of the materials so
requested. For welding/soldering materials which
were considered as sundry items, they would be
supplied by Prosperity and purchase orders would

be placed by us with them.

(g) I worked as a clerk to Mr. Ho Man Piu in around May
1997 and later became his Personal Assistant.
Prosperity has become the regular supplier of the
welding/soldering components and materials to Ho
Biu Kee. From time to time, Prosperity provided to
Ho Biu Kee price list of common sundry materials
(typical one as Annex A dated April 2012).
Prosperity updated and revised their price list at
regular intervals. When we received updated price
list from Prosperity, we would usually check and
compare with the old ones to see what revision had
been made and by how much. We would then talk to
Prosperity (usually Mr. CHOW Ka Ping regarding
pricing) and ascertain the reasons for increase.
For those items which had substantial increase in
unit rate, we might check the market prices from
other suppliers to see if the rates offered by
Prosperity would still be competitive. If we found
that Prosperity rates were significantly higher

than the market, we would negotiate lower rates with

- 10 -
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Prosperity. This would usually end up with discount
(say 5% to 10%) offered by Prosperity to its
published rate.

(h) In any event, when we received request for supply
of materials from Ho Biu Kee's site
personnel-in-charge, we would usually telephone
the staff of Prosperity informing them of the
particulars of materials which we would like to
purchase and ask them to quote for them. As
Prosperity had a standard price list for sundry
items (such as the consumables for welding
including soldering materials), they would usually
revert and tell us that we could follow the standard
price. Sometimes we might negotiate with them for
a better discount; sometimes we might not. All
depends on how urgent Ho Biu Kee wished to have the

materials and what quantities.

(1) In the case of Kai Ching Estate, since Mr. Chan Siu
Wah ("Mr. Chan") required solder strips in addition
to solder wire, we therefore asked Prosperity
whether they had these materials and the price. Mr.
Chow Ka Ping of Prosperity told us that they had
V50 )RR available and the rates for supply
of this could be found at the price 1list of
Prosperity previously sent to Ho Biu Kee. We then
prepared purchase orders setting out the quantity
of “§54R” and “§5f&” requested by our site people
and asked Prosperity to send them to the Kai Ching
Estate site. In our purchase orders, we also set
out the unit prices which were based on the

Prosperity's price list.

- 11 -
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(j) For the sake of completeness and upon perusal of
records kept by Ho Biu Kee in respect of Shui Chuen
O Project (which is still ongoing), I wish to point
out that we had obtained quotation from Tung Wah
Metal & Machinery Limited (H#ZEAHAESHEMEIELNE)
("Tung Wah"), who is also one of our suppliers, on
their supply of “§54R”. The unit rate of “§H%E” from
Tung Wah was only HK$67 per pound, which was
significantly lower than that supplied by
Prosperity (which was of about HKS$145 per pound
(being of net price of HKS$160 per 500 gram and with
500 gram equal to 1.1 1lb)). However, since Ho Biu
Kee had in business with Prosperity for many years
and we had confidence in the quality of product
supplied by Prosperity and further the sundry items
did not take up much of costs, we therefore decided
to purchase from Prosperity “§54#” for use in Shui

Chuen O Project and other plumbing projects. There
is now produced and shown to me marked Annex B the

relevant documents evidencing the above.

(k) Within Ho Biu Kee, purchase orders with value below
$100, 000 would be signed by myself. For those above
$100,000, the Purchasing Department staff would
prepare the purchase orders for my checking and Mr.
Ho Man Piu would thereafter sign on behalf of Ho

Biu Kee.

(1) TUpon receipt of the purchase orders (which were
usually sent by fax), Prosperity would arrange for
delivery of materials to site. Upon receipt of
materials, the officer-in-charge (and sometimes
supervisors in charge of blocks) of each site would
check that the materials conformed to the delivery

note. If yes, they would sign on the delivery notes

- 12 -

Transcript by DTI Corporation Asia, Limited



N

BAKEHENEHAEZRG 20161 H 15 H

with quantity marked and return copies of them to
the head office of Ho Biu Kee. Prosperity would
later send the original delivery notes (signed for
acceptance by Ho Biu Kee's site personnel) to the
accounts office of Ho Biu Kee for payment

application.

(m) If partial delivery was made by Prosperity and the
total quantities did not match with the quantity
we ordered in the purchase orders, the purchase
orders issued before would be revised and resent
to Prosperity. When delivery was made, Prosperity
would submit invoice for the quantity actually
delivered. Thus there could be several invoices for
the same component but for different gquantities

delivered at different times.

2. Question

Describe their background, qualifications and
experience m the plumbing industry and in the
procurement of plumbing materials, 1in particular,

soldering materials for the jointing of fresh water

pipes.

Answer

I was a secondary school Form 5 graduate. I have worked
for Mr. Ho Man Piu since graduation in around May 1997.
Prior to joining Ho Biu Kee, I did not have previous
experience in metal pipes (including copper pipes) and

soldering materials for jointing of fresh water pipes.

- 13 -

Transcript by DTI Corporation Asia, Limited



BAKEHENEHAEZRG 20161 H 15 H

3. Question

Confirm whether they were responsible for procuring
soldering materials for jointing the fresh water pipes
in the 2 Affected Estates and for placing the related

orders for soldering materials with Prosperity.

Answer

I oversee the procurement of soldering materials for
jointing the fresh water pipes in the 2 Affected Estates
and the placing of the related orders for soldering
materials with Prosperity. In carrying out the
aforesaid work, I was assisted from time to time by Ms.

Chiu and Catlin.

4, Question

Confirm whether they were aware that soldering
materials for the purpose of jointing fresh water pipes

must be lead-free.

Answer

At that time, I was NOT aware that soldering materials
for the purpose of jointing fresh water pipes must be

lead-free.

- 14 -
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5. Question

Explain and describe the instructions given by Mr Chan
and/or Mr Wong and/or Mr Kwong and/or any other person (s)
from Ho Biu Kee to each of the Procurement Staff in
relation to the procurement of soldering materials for
each of the 2 Affected Estates.

Answer

r. Kwong is not and was not at all material times
attached to the Purchasing Department of Ho Biu Kee
and I do not work under Mr. Kwong. Hence Mr. Kwong
did not give me any specific instructions on or was
ever involved in procurement of solderingmaterials
for any estates including the 2 Affected Estates.
Soldering materials were sundry items and Mr. Kwong

was never involved in procurement of them.

fter site works commenced at Kai Ching Estate, Mr.
Chan (the person-in-charge of site work for Kai
Ching Estate plumbing and drainage sub-contract)
requested that soldering material in the form of
solder strips and solder wire be supplied for the

plumbing works in Kai Ching Estate project.

t the material times, we (i.e. all staff of the
Purchasing Department of Ho Biu Kee) did not know

that solder strips might contain lead; nor did we

- 15 -
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pay attention to whether solder strips contained
lead or not as we were not aware of the requirements
that solder strips should be "lead- free". 1In
following up Mr. Chan's request, we simply asked
for the supply of “solder strips” (#{&) from
Prosperity. We did not request for particulars
brands of '"'solder strips" or specify what metal
content the "solder strips" should contain or

should not contain.

(d) A
s the costs of soldering materials were not
expensive and we had long history of working in
collaboration with Prosperity, we then placed
orders with Prosperity for their supply of ''solder
strips" to comply with Mr. Chan's request. In
response to our request for "solder strips", Ho Biu

Kee was then supplied with "EE50 JREHKE" by

Prosperity.

(e) A
similar request for solder strips was made by Mr.
Wong Kwai Hung ("Mr. Wong") in respect of Kwai Luen
Estate project. We also complied with his request
and placed order with Prosperity for their supply
of "solder strips" (§{&) . Again “EE S50 JJFEIFE"” was
delivered to site by Prosperity.

(f) M
oreover I myself did NOT check or verify whether
the request for soldering materials were those
specified in the submissions of materials to the
HA.

- 16 -
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6. OQuestion

Explain and describe how they placed orders for
soldering materials with Prosperity. Confirm whether
they have informed Prosperity that the soldering
materials ordered were to be used for the jointing of
fresh water pipes. If they have not informed Prosperity
that the soldering materials to be supplied were to be
used for jointing fresh water pipes, explain the steps
they took to ensure that Prosperity would deliver

soldering materials suitable for jointing fresh water

pipes.

Answer

(a) For placing orders for soldering materials with
Prosperity, please see my Answer to Question I

above.

(b) As explained in my Answer to Question I, Prosperity
has been supplying the welding/soldering
components and materials to Ho Biu Kee for many
years. Prosperity was at the material times widely
known in the plumbing trade as a reliable supplier

for pipes and consumables for plumbing work.

(c) Mr. Kwong dealt with Prosperity for preparing
materials samples and details for approval by the
HD. I would refer to his witness statement for
details. Regarding placing purchase orders with
Prosperity for supply of soldering materials and

their details, Ms. Chiu was personally involved and

- 17 -

Transcript by DTI Corporation Asia, Limited



N

BAKEHENEHAEZRG 20161 H 15 H

knew better than I. Her answers can be found at

Answer to Question I.

(d) Apart from informing Prosperity the name and
particulars of the site (i.e. Kai Ching Estate and
Kwai Luen Estate), I did not personally inform
anybody of Prosperity that the soldering materials
ordered were to be used for the jointing of fresh

water pipes.

7. Question

On the basis of the Purchase Records, a Summary is
enclosed and a total of 43 transactions for the
procurement of soldering materials have been identified

in respect of the 2 Affected Estates (Enclosure 1).

(a) In relation to Kwai Luen Estate, 12 transactions
were made by the purchasing department between

April 2013 and August 2015:

Question 7(a) (i)

(1) Identify the person(s) among the Procurement
Staff who placed the purchase orders for
soldering materials in respect of Kwai Luen
Estate and those who determined which type
or brand of soldering materials should be
ordered and acquired from Prosperity and
explain the reasons and bases of his/their

decision.

- 18 -

Transcript by DTI Corporation Asia, Limited



BKEHEBIEHEZRR

g

2016441 H 15 H

Answer 7(a) (i)

(a) As the purchase orders for Kwai Luen Estate
could not be 1located, I could not tell
precisely whether it isme, Catlin or Ms. Chiu
who actually placed the orders for the first
11 transactions. For transaction 12, the
request from site was dated 28 July 2015 and
the corresponding order was issued on 13
August 2015. This order was prepared by
Catlin and signed by me. In any event and as
explained in my Answer to Question I above,
we only followed the request of site
personnel-in-charge of Kwai Luen Estate
(i.e. Mr. Wong) on the soldering materials
and placed orders with Prosperity for "solder
strips" (#f&) and/or "solder wire" (§54%)
without specifying what type or brand from

Prosperity.

(b) Based on the materials request form sent by Mr.
Wong, Ho Biu Kee asked for the supply of
'"solder strips" (#5{%) from Prosperity and Ho

Biu Kee was then supplied with “3ZLE{50 I

ﬂ%:// ]

(c) In respect of Mr. Wong's request for the use
of "solder wire" (§%4%), purchase orders were
issued to Prosperity for supply of solder wire.
Prosperity then supplied '""FRY'' lead-free

solder wire.

(d) In respect of transaction 12, we placed order

- 19 -
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for high temperature solder wire (non leaded)
(ErEH4% (#E5Y) ) as by then, we knew that solder
strip was suspected to be a source for excess
lead in water. In order to avoid any problem,
I and the Purchasing Department were
specifically requested by Mr. Ho Man Piu NOT
to make any order for solder strip and to
specify that soldering materials used should

contain "no lead".

Question 7 (a) (ii)

(ii) Explain why sometimes Fry lead-free solder
wire (transactions 2 and 12) and at other times
(transactions 1, 3-11) “HEE50JRFE#HE"” were
purchased. Explain in particular why both
types of soldering materials were acquired in

transaction 2.

Answer 7 (a) (ii)

(a) Soldering materials were requested by Mr. Wong
in the materials request forms sent from time
to time to suit site work progress. Mr. Wong
set out his requirement in terms of quantity
for the solder strips as well as solder wire
to the Purchasing Department and orders were
placed by us with Prosperity for their supply
of these solder strips/solder wire per the
material request form to suit the site work

progress.

(b) I did not know why sometimes Fry lead-free

- 20 -
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solder wire (transactions 2 and 12) and at
other times (transactions 1, 3-11) “ZEE]50/]
¥ 6&"” were used. For transaction 2, both
“solder strips” (#5f%&) and “solder wire” - (¥
(&) were required by Mr. Wong. For transaction
1, 3to 11, -“solder strips” (#3{%) was required
by Mr. Wong. We simply did according to his
requirement and asked Prosperity to supply
those materials. ©Nobody 1in Ho Biu Kee
(including myself) knew that these "solder

strip'' materials might cause problem to the

quality of potable water.

(c) For transaction 12, the request from site was
dated 28'11 July 2015, which was after the
media reported there was excess lead 1in
drinking waters in public housing estates.
Hence only lead- free solder wire was requested

per the instructions of Mr. Ho Man Piu.

(b) As regards Kai Ching Estate, the purchase
records of 31 transactions may be found
(between November 2010 and January 2013) . Most

of the relevant purchase orders were missing:

Question 7 (b) (i)

(1) Identify the person(s) among the Procurement
Staff who placed the purchase orders for
soldering materials in respect of Kai Ching
Estate and those who determined which type or
brand of soldering materials should be ordered

and acquired from Prosperity and explain the

- 21 -
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reasons and bases of his/their decision.

Answer 7 (b) (i)

(a) As the purchase orders for Kai Ching Estate
could not be located (except for transactions
27, 29, 30 and 31 as they are now discovered
by Prosperity), I could not tell precisely
whether it 1is me, Catlin or Ms. Chiu who
actually placed the orders for these 27
transactions (i.e. those other than
transactions 27, 29, 30 and 31 ). In any event
and as explained in my Answer to Question I
above, we only followed the request of Mr. Chan
who was then the site personnel-in-charge of
Kai Ching Estate on the solderingmaterials and
placed orders with Prosperity for "solder
strips" (#{&) and/or "solder wire" (§54%%)
without specifying what type or brand from

Prosperity.

(b) For transaction 27, it was prepared by Catlin,

checked by myself and signed by Mr. Ho Man Piu.

(c) For transaction 29, it was an urgent request.

I prepared and signed the purchase order.

(d) For transaction 30, it was prepared by Catlin

and I signed the order.

(e) For transaction 31, it was prepared by Catlin,

checked by myself and signed by Mr. Ho Man Piu.
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(f) Based on the materials request forms sent by
Mr. Chan, Ho Biu Kee asked for the supply of
"solder strips" ($%4%) from Prosperity and Ho

Biu Kee was then supplied with “ILE50 /]

,ﬂ/%ll .

(g) In respect of Mr. Chan's request for the use
of ‘“solder wire” (#34%), purchase orders were
issued to Prosperity for supply of solder wire.
Prosperity then supplied “FRY” lead-free

solder wire.

Question 7 (b) (ii)

(ii) Explain why sometimes Fry lead-free solder
wife (transactions 3, 5, 10, 11, 15 and 18)
and at other times "HEE S50 JREIHKE" were
purchased. Explain in particular why both
types of soldering materials were acquired in

transactions 3, 5, 10, 11 and 18.

Answer 7 (b) (ii)

(a) Soldering materials were requested by Mr. Chan
in the materials request forms sent from time
to time to suit site work progress. Mr. Chan
set out his requirement in terms of quantity
for the solder strips as well as solder wire
to the Purchasing Department and orders were
placed by us with Prosperity for their supply

of these solder strips/solder wire per the
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material request forms to suit the site work

progress.

(b) I did not know why sometimes Fry lead-free
solder wire (transactions 3, 5, 10, 11 and 18)
and at other times “HE50/JFEIFE"” were used.
For transactions 3, 5, 10, 11 and 18, both
"solder strips" ($%3{f%) and/or "solder wire" (
#34%) were required by Mr. Chan. For other
transactions, Mr. Chan requested "solder
strips" (#{%) only. We simply did according
to his requirement and asked Prosperity to
supply those materials. Nobody in Ho Biu Kee
(including myself) knew that these -“solder
strip” materials might cause problem to the

quality of potable water.

8. Question

Explain the choice of Prosperity as the supplier for
soldering materials and confirm the length of Ho Biu
Kee's business relationship with Prosperity as far as

the procurement of soldering materials is concerned.

Answer

Prosperity has been dealing with Ho Biu Kee for a long
time supplying welding/soldering materials as well as
comprehensive range of metal works (brackets, thread
rods, galvanized bolts/nuts/washers) for use in
construction projects. Due to the long working

relationship, Ho Biu Kee reposed trust and confidence
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on Prosperity for the products they supplied.

9. Question

After an order for soldering materials has been placed
with Prosperity, explain how the Procurement Staff
would inform Mr Chan, Mr Wong, Mr Kwong or other staff
of Ho Biu Kee at the building site of the 2 Affected
Estates about the purchase order and the expected

delivery.

Answer

(a) In general, we would state on each purchase order
the name of the site person (consignee) of Ho Biu
Kee for contact by Prosperity (with telephone
number provided). Prosperity would then contact
the relevant Ho Biu Kee site staff (usually 2 days
in advance but if the requirement of material was
urgent, then it might be shortly after they
received the purchase order) to confirm the time

for delivery of materials to match site operation.

(b) For Kai Ching Estate, we usually stated Mr. Chan
as the contact person in our purchase orders.
However, for those materials needed urgently (for
example by block foremen), we wrote down the name
of those block foremen (such as Mr. Wong) as

contact person.

(c) For Kwai Luen Estate, we usually stated Mr. Wong

and I or Mr. Leung Wai Kin (Z{#{#) as the contact
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person(s) in our purchase orders.

(d) We would not send copies of purchase orders placed
with Prosperity or other suppliers to Ho Biu Kee
site people. It has been our policy that site staff
was not required to know the cost of the items of
materials in the purchase order. If materials were
urgently required, site staff would call us (with
material request form to be provided later) or
would on few occasions approach Prosperity
directly for their supply of materials and the

timing.

(e) As Mr. Kwong was not involved with material
delivery, he would not be notified of delivery of

material to site.

10. Question

Explain the choice of using the soldering material by
the brand name of “50/1®#HHE” and confirm whether such

solder strips were used as a result of recommendation

by Prosperity.

Answer

(a) As the purchasing staff (including myself) were
not responsible for site works and did not know
how works were being carried out, 1 could not tell
why the soldering material by the brand name of
“ 50 JJR§#F%"” was chosen and used.
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(b) To the best of my knowledge. such “Bi[F|50 I RFHR"
was used as a result of recommendation by
Prosperity. Ho Biu Kee only requested "#{&" in its

purchase orders and Prosperity delivered “Ii[Ef50

T1FE$56%:” to Ho Biu Kee.

11. Question

Describe the steps, if any, taken by the Procurement
Staff upon delivery of the soldering materials on the

construction site of each of the 2 Affected Estates.

Answer

(a) After delivery of the soldering materials to the
construction site of the 2 Affected Estates,
Prosperity would submit its invoices together with
the signed original of the Delivery Notes (signed
by the officer-in- charge of the site acknowledging
delivery) to Ho Biu Kee Accounts Office for payment

processing.

(b) There were no specific steps by Procurement staff
upon delivery of soldering materials (and other
items in the Purchase Order) unless the quantities
delivered did not match with those requested on the
purchase order. By way of example, the quantity
ordered might be delivered in tranches to site on
various occasions. Sometimes the total quantity

delivered might be less than that ordered. On such
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occasion, we would then update the purchase order

and issue a revised one to Prosperity.

(c) For transactions 27 and 31 mentioned in Question
7(b) (i1), the quantity of solder material (and
other sundry materials) ordered was delivered
to site in tranches on more than one occasion. We
therefore marked on the Purchase Orders the
quantity delivered on each occasion and the
Purchase order (issued on 2 November 2012) was
later revised (on 13* May 2013) to reflect the
actually delivered quantity. For partial
delivery, Prosperity would issue separate
invoices for the quantities delivered. (Invoice
dated 23" November 2012 for Transaction 27 for 100
1b of solder strip. Invoice dated 22" January 2013
for Transaction 31 for 165 1lb solder strip.) These
invoices were in purported compliance of the same
Purchase Order KTIAP-30208-PB. Indeed a total of
550 1lb solder strip under this order was delivered

to site on 3 occasions.

12. Question

Confirm whether they were aware that the solder strips
“50 NRWIBIE” acquired from Prosperity and used in the

2 Affected Estates contained lead.

Answer

I myself, and other procurement staff of Ho Biu Kee

(including Catlin and Ms Chiu) was not aware that the
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solder strips "50/JR#HR" acquired from Prosperity and
used in the 2 Affected Estates contained lead.

13. Question

Explain why, notwithstanding that Ho Biu Kee has caused
the two Main Contractors, China State and Shui On, to
submit to the HA Form DCMPF716 (i.e. sample submission
approval form) for “FRY” 99C lead free solder wire
together with supporting infomlation to confirm the
lead free composition of such solder material,
non-compliant solder strips which contained lead were
actually acquired and used to joint the fresh water

plumbing pipes in the 2 Estates.

Answer

I was not involved in the material submission or site
operation. I am therefore unable to provide meaningful
answer save as to those matters which I have already

deposed before.
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MR PENNICOTT #% [

[

: Ms Wong, can you hear me through the headphones?
D EaE -

: Thank you. Ms Wong, I want to pursue with you a few

questions on a topic that Commissioner Lai raised a
few minutes ago. Before I do that, can I ask you this:
you became Mr Ho's PA in 1997, you've told us; is that
right?

: When did you become his PA?
98 £ 99 -

: Can you tell us this: when who did you first become

involved with the purchasing of materials on behalf
of HBK?

P HER-AZH LA - ABARE T - Fax Hff > T N FIHEE -

EARIREE RO F R oI > BEE A - R R — ARG AR AR T
fE > (A —E A F TME - A@E ARcE R EE EE - EHRTEEE
HERIBIE - ShRFRER 99 TR > 99 §T1% -

That's helpful. Can I ask you please to be shown file
F2, page 1340.
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: Ms Wong, this is a list of 16 unaffected estates

constructed by China State. Do you see that?
PERE

:In respect of 11 of those unaffected estates, your
company was the subcontractor. Do you see that listed

in the middle column?
D RLE] o

As I say, these are unaffected, lead-free estates.
Would you have been involved in the procurement of
materials for these unaffected estates, to the best

of your recollection?

PR A ER R h 2 B > TR (R - - B (R - - AR A5 25 (o (i -

: Do you have any recollection of any of your site
supervisors or officers in charge of the subcontracts

on site ordering solder strips?
PRS- B o

: Could I ask you, please, to go to bundle H1l, page 121.
Ms Wong, this is a similar schedule to the one I have
just shown you. It lists the 12 unaffected estates
constructed by Shui On. Do you follow?

PEEE] -

:Inrespect of 11 out of the 12 unaffectedestates, again,

your company, HBK, was the subcontractor; do you see
that?

PEED -
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Ms Wong, again, would you have been involved, to the
best of your recollection, in procuring the materials

in relation to these unaffected estates?

PR AE R R BRI R AT RO (E - Rl IREEECE S

HATEEWHE @k WMEXEEEER > BAHE--AEHE--
B (A #E & (st 2 T (- BeEsC Rt (R

:If it wasn't you, Ms Wong, who would it have been?

ot F S - DR B A U MR+ [ R AT By - DR B VR i
A AT I 2 8 <

I see.

CEMRAREE IR o TEARERGEE > B RERE o NI S

procurement MAMEM R FL A plHIEA - HREE(FRIE MW > WEELHE -

I assume it follows, therefore, that you have no
recollection of whether or not solder strips as opposed
to solder wire was ordered by your site staff in respect

of these unaffected estates?

R NIT

:Just finally on this topic, if you can go, please, to

file Gl, page 628.

Ms Wong, this is the equivalent schedule but this time
it relates to seven unaffected estates constructed by

Paul Y. Do you see that?

FfR e

:In respect of two of the estates, again, your company

was subcontractor for blocks 1, 2 and 3 of the Upper
Ngau Tau Kok Estate, and the subcontractor for Tin

Ching Estate; do you see that?

PEED -

:In respect of those two estates, Ms Wong, again, do
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you have any recollection as to being involved with
the purchase of plumbingmaterials in relation to those

two estates?

PRIERRE > Bk

: Okay. Allright. There isone final question, Ms Wong.

I wonder if you could be shown, please, bundle S1, page
128.

PERE

: Could I ask you, please, to look at the entry dated

14 October 2011, the third one down; do you see that?

DHRE -

: Against that date, one sees "FRY", 20 rolls, and then

a box of WL50D material; do you see that?

CERE] o BRE] o

As I understand it, Ms Wong, the effect of your evidence
is that what the site staff would have ordered is one
box of solder wire and one box of solder strips. 1Is
that right?

bR E] DL 2 K 7

Yes. My understanding of the effect of your evidence
is that in respect of that entry, what the site staff,
Mr Chan, would have ordered is one box of solder wire

and one box of solder strips. Is that correct?

L BEUR (E 2 T BB BN B 4 % g -

— SR 20 4 > EE A IREE -

U5 IE -
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FE  BIGRERIMEREE RS > —@28tfe 20 @ - —& 5k 55 B

FRE AR GER ARG RS o R AR A e — 2 0 - (R0R 7

MR PENNICOTT : Thank vyou, Mr Chairman. No further

questions.

RS AE - EE

R 5l A 1

0 H=/NME o fREBE—BS S1 102 > 1B > AWM EMER R -
& LAY -

[ EHJelhEs 103 {REMEFELF - 1037
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Annex: Realtime English Transcription based on floor / Simultaneous Interpretation

Commission of Inquiry into

Excess Lead Found in Drinking Water Day 39

Friday, 15 January 2016

(10.01 am)

(Transcript of simultaneous interpretation
except where otherwise specified)

MR YEUNG: Chairman, with your permission, I would like to
recall Mr Kwong.

MR KEVIN KWONG KA FU (recalled, reaffirmed)

CHAIRMAN: Please take a seat.

Further examination-in-chief by MR YEUNG

MR YEUNG: Thank you, Mr Kwong. You have been recalled
today because after you gave evidence yesterday, Mr Chan
Siu Wah made some allegation about you and I would like
to seek some clarifications with you.

A. Yes.

Q. Mr Chan told the Commission that for Kai Ching Estate,
after work had commenced, he rang you up on the mobile
to talk about the kind of pipes that should have
soldering and what types of pipe should have silver
brazing.

A. No.

Q. Did you say that for 67 mm diameter or above copper
pipes it should be silver brazing, and 54 mm or below
should be soldering?

A. I didn't mention that because I didn't understand what

sizes should be suited for what connection type.
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Commission of Inquiry into
Excess Lead Found in Drinking Water Day 39

Q. Mr Chan also mentioned that you rang up Wong Kwai Hung
about Kai Ching Estate blocks 1 and 2 and what sort of
soldering materials should be used for connecting the
copper pipes. Did you say that?

A. No, I didn't say that.

Q. Did you ever ring up Mr Fan Sau Peng about Kai Ching
Estate blocks 5 and 6 regarding the type of soldering
materials?

A. No.

Q. For Lung Yat Estate, Mr Chan Siu Wah also said that you
rang him up on the mobile phone to tell him what
soldering materials should be used for certain diameter
pipes.

A. No, I didn't.

Q. My last question. There is a document in bundle F1 at
page 215.2.

A. Yes, I see that.

Q. According to Mr Chan Siu Wah, this memo, he took it from
the pigeonhole of China State, and this has nothing to
do with the progress and safety. He sent it to the
office, and someone handled that in the head office.

For this type of document, how would Ho Biu Kee
handle them?

A. Normal practice would be the officer in charge would

receive the document, and we would collect the documents
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Commission of Inquiry into
Excess Lead Found in Drinking Water Day 39

from the site, and the driver would pick them up and
send them back to the head office, and he will hand them
over to Madam Wong. Madam Wong would be categorising
them and then pass them on to me. I would take a look
at them and then send them back to Madam Wong for
filing.

Q. For this document, have you seen that -- do you remember
seeing it?

A. I saw it yesterday but not before.

Q. What about at the material time; did you see that?

A. Not that I can remember.

MR YEUNG: Thank you, Mr Kwong. I have no further
questions.

CHAIRMAN: Any further questions?

Further cross-examination by MR SHIEH

MR SHIEH: Mr Kwong, some follow-up questions. Mr Yeung,
HBK's counsel, told you something Mr Chan Siu Wah said
about you. He said you rang him up about the kind of
soldering materials to be used for certain diameter
pipes. You said no.

Technically, do you know how to connect the pipes?

A. No.

Q. You are not by training a welder?

A. No.

Q. Why Mr Chan Siu Wah said this -- he said, when putting
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in the bid, they will look at how many pipes of
a certain diameter and they would prepare the kind of --
work out the kind of materials for certain pipes of
a certain diameter, and one who put in the bid would
know about it. That's why he said that it was you who
told him that for a certain diameter or above a certain
diameter you have to use silver brazing, or below
a certain diameter you have to use soldering. He said
it's only you who would know how to distribute the
materials.

How would you respond to that?

A. I don't agree with that, because when I put in the bid,
the quotation would set aside 5 per cent for the minor
hardware items, although we don't have any specific
price in the quotation.

Q. Yesterday, you said that you didn't have a very precise
sum about silver brazing, and then you would set aside
a certain sum for a certain method. Do you agree with
that?

A. Yes.

Q. Let's go back to the 5 per cent that was mentioned
yesterday. In your quotation for piping or plumbing,
I'm not sure what unit you use, maybe $100 per foot or
whatever per X, this would assume that 5 per cent would

be spread over for the soldering materials?
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A. Minor hardware items.

Q. This X would include the hardware items. In your
standard price list, you would include that particular
item?

A. Yes.

MR SHIEH: I have no further questions.

Further cross-examination by MR LAM

MR LAM: Mr Kwong, let me clarify this. At that time, when
you made the submission about the soldering materials,
in Lung Yat Estate you submitted the samples?

A. Yes.

CHAIRMAN: Thanks very much, Mr Kwong. You are free to go
now.

(The witness withdrew)

MR YEUNG: Chairman, I have the next witness, Madam Wong
Wai Ping.

MS WONG WAI PING (affirmed)

CHAIRMAN: Please take a seat.

Examination-in-chief by MR YEUNG

MR YEUNG: Madam Wong, on 23 December 2015, at the request
of the counsel of the Commission, you prepared a witness
statement. There are 21 pages. That's K3/2333.

I am going to read out the statement but in English.
Please don the headphones.

(Statement read in English)
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So we see your signature here. Do you confirm the
contents of the statement are correct and accurate?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you wish to adopt this as evidence?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. I only have one question for you to supplement.
Mr Chan Siu Wah, in page 9 of his statement,
paragraph 39, K1/2398 -- I would like to direct you to
the first three sentences in paragraph 39. 1In
paragraph 39, Mr Chan Siu Wah says:

"Regarding Lung Yat Estate, where I have placed
several orders on solder strip with Ho Biu Kee, a female
staff member from Ho Biu Kee told me over the phone that
the form should be written as 'solder wire' and not
'solder strip', but I do not recall who that staff
member was."

Do you see that?

A. Yes.

Q. I would like to ask: had you ever made a phone call to
Mr Chan Siu Wah regarding the procurement order in Lung
Yat Estate, you should not say "solder strip", it should
be "solder wire"?

A. No.

Q. As far as you know, had you discussed with other female

staff?
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A. No.
Q. No?
A. No.

MR YEUNG: I have no further questions.
Cross—-examination by MR SHIEH

MR SHIEH: Ms Wong, I represent the Commission and I have
some questions.

First of all, regarding your work experience. You
joined Ho Biu Kee in May 1997. Prior to that did you
work in a plumbing company?

A. No.

Q. After graduating form 5, you joined the workforce?

A. Yes.

Q. Previously, what work were you involved in?

A. Secretarial administrative work but not with a plumbing
company.

Q. So, in the plumbing company, starting from 1997, you
worked all the way past 2000, so you are aware that in
public rental housing estates there is a step where
an application of construction material needs to receive
approval from the HA or HD?

A. I wasn't aware, even up till 2000, because I was not
involved in that area. I'm aware now.

Q. For example, in Kai Ching Estate or Kwai Luen Estate,

you were aware?
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A. Yes.
Q. You were aware in principle that the hands-on work or

sample, that was Mr Kwong's work?

Yes.

So Mr Kwong, he met with the main contractor, because
there was a main contractor who had a subcontracting
relationship with Ho Biu Kee, so Mr Kwong would submit
samples to the main contractor and receive some
responses; you are aware of that step?

Yes.

So Mr Kwong, he was aware that some construction
material received approval. So did he tell you?

No.

I would like to compare some documents with you. FI1,
page 215.2. We have seen that this morning.

Take a look at this document. It's China State
Construction, the main contractor for Kai Ching Estate.
It was issued in October 2011 to Ho Biu Kee. It's
a memorandum. It says:

"We notify your company that the following materials
have been approved by the architects.

FRY 99C lead-free solder wire and FRY Powerflux."

It says that the relevant material sample and
approval form is for archive and follow-up.

Then we see a sample submission and approval form.
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Set aside this form. So these types of memorandums
from the main contractor, China State, they would send
it to Ho Biu Kee, notifying them of the approved
materials. Did you ever see these memorandums?

A. Yes.

Q. That would make it easier, because this morning we heard
Mr Kwong, when he gave evidence, he said this form --
how did it pass through the people's hands. He said
that first it would appear in the construction site, the
driver would bring it back to the office, and you would
be the first person to receive these documents. You
would then show it to Mr Kwong, and after Mr Kwong read
it, you would archive it and save it. Do you agree with
that?

A. Yes.

Q. So you would archive. Would you take a look at the
contents?

A. I wouldn't look at the details. I just look at the
topic.

Q. You just look at the topic?

A. Yes.

Q. And the topic is --

A. Approved material.

Q. -- approved material, and you have a file for approved

materials. When you file, how detailed is your filing
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system? Would you just put it in a Kai Ching Estate
file, or do you have a category relating to --

A. No. One Kai Ching Estate file.

Q. So it's in chronological order?

A. Yes.

Q. So the first might be a contract --

A. There wouldn't be a contract, just letters.

Q. So incoming letters or outgoing?

A. We wouldn't have outgoing, only incoming.

Q. You wouldn't have a further breakdown?

A. No.

Q. So when you archive these records, it's just for future
reference?

A. Because when I joined the company, that's how my
predecessor taught me, and I followed instructions.

Q. There was no judgment or input, where --

A. No, because when I received it, I would forward it to
relevant colleagues to follow up, because there is
a stamp, they would sign, and I would keep records.

Q. So your role, in your understanding, it's not to look at
the content and follow up? So, in your understanding,
your role was to take the relevant documents, submit
them to relevant colleagues, and any actual follow-up
work would be the relevant staff's responsibility? You

were just a liaison person, you would share the workload

- 10 -
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and then you would just keep records?

A. Correct.

Q. So your understanding is that when you saw these types
of documents regarding approved materials, so your
judgment was that this was Mr Kwong's responsibility.

A. Correct.

Q. You would hand it over to Mr Kwong, and any follow-up
action, that was Mr Kwong's professional judgment?

A. Yes.

Q. So that is the general case. So, in page 215.2, do you
have any special recollection? Or you might have no
special recollection.

A. I wouldn't read the contents.

Q. So you would submit it to Mr Kwong and you would file

itw
A. Yes.
Q. So I would like to ask you -- I heard you say that you

relied on your predecessor or your colleagues telling
you, within Ho Biu Kee, there is a system that you just
need to follow, or the boss has some orders.

A. When I joined, the boss didn't tell me what to do. Only
my supervisor would tell me what to do.

Q. So when you have one project, there are a lot of fixed
procedures, and you are running on auto-pilot, so you

don't need Mr Ho to instruct you?

- 11 -
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A.

No. My supervisor -- I was only a clerk at the time.
I would fax, file, photocopy.
You were learning on the job, so Mr Ho would not give
you specific instructions?
No.
So you roughly knew that there was a list of approved
material, so when you gave this document to Mr Kwong and
you filed it, did you ever think about Ho Biu Kee should
have a system or a procedure? You did not take the
initiative that "The approved material, FRY, I should
create a system such as when we place orders to
Prosperity, we place the correct order"? Did that ever
flash across your mind?
Well, Mr Kwong, he was doing this type of work, and
I firmly believed that he would be able to co-ordinate
his efforts with colleagues.
When you say "this area", Mr Kwong is not procurement.
That's correct. I mean submitting samples.
Let's take it step by step. Submitting samples is
submitting samples to the main contractor. You submit
samples to the main contractor and the main contractor
sends them back.

You know Mr Kwong's professional expertise is
quantity surveying; he is a quantity surveyor?

Yes.

- 12 -
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Q.

So he would work out the sum, the pay and how to bid the
contract. That's very much his area of expertise.

As regards communication with the suppliers, this is
not his remit -- sorry, communicating with Prosperity,
placing order, by phone, by fax, this is not the remit
of Mr Kwong?

No.

Mr Kwong gets the sample, he gets the approval from the
site, and that is his responsibility?

Yes.

So there is a bridge, the approval has been obtained and
the procurement staff should know what they should order
to measure up to the approved items?

Yes. In theory, yes.

Now, approval has been given to a certain brand. When
you place order, you may not know what to order, or
maybe when you supply something, this is not what the
approved items -- in theory there should be such

a bridge?

Yes.

Let me put this conceptually, to see if this makes
sense, if this is a logical idea. So far as you
understood at the time, in Ho Biu Kee, who played this
bridging role? Approval has been obtained and the

approval should be filtered down to the procurement

- 13 -
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staff; who played the bridge -- Mr Kwong?

A. Yes, Mr Kwong.

Q. You didn't play this role because according to your
understanding, this is not what you were supposed to do,
but my understanding is that sometimes you would sign
the purchase order. There is a system whereby above a
certain sum, it would be for Mr Ho, and below a certain
sum you would sign the orders. As to what to purchase,
the process is that the officer in charge on the site
for a particular block would fill out these material
request forms and fax the form to the head office?

A. Yes.

Q. And they would specify the items, they would have
certain phrases and jargon that they would specify what
they wanted, and faxed them to the head office. Having
received the form, the procurement staff would prepare

the purchase order, because they ordered in writing;

right?

A. Yes.

Q. And this purchase order would be faxed -- faxed or
emailed?

A. Faxed, yes.
Q. —-- would be faxed to the supplier and the supplier would
follow up and deliver the materials; this is the

process?

- 14 -
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A. Yes.
Q. In this particular case, what we saw is that the site

staff would specify the materials that they wanted and
send the form to the head office, and then the head
office would convert that into a purchase order. So the
jargon that they use, the phrases that they use, are you
lifting these from the form onto the purchase order?
Let's say the site staff say that on this item, would
the procurement staff, Jess for instance, would she be
replicating the words from the form onto the purchase
order, or would they be checking to make sure that this
material is an approved material? Is there such

a process?

Depending on the work site progress, they would submit
the request form. When we receive the form, we would
place order for the materials sought. We would just use
the words that they use.

So whatever phrases they use, whatever words they use,
you would be replicating the exact wording onto the
purchase order?

Correct.

This process of receiving the request form and then
converting the form into a purchase order, in your
day-to-day work would it include this step?

No.

- 15 -
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Q.

So it would be for Jess or Catlin who would take up this
role, and you would be supervising them, and you would
be signing on the form?

I would have to check. Let's say they want ten boxes,
are there ten boxes in the purchase order? If the price
quoted is $10, would that be $10 or $1007?

What about the quotation, is it your job?

No, it's their job.

So you are the supervisor, you would check to make sure
that everything is in order? Let's say you have

a ceiling of $100,000 and for your signature, for urgent
cases, very urgent cases, maybe go over the amount, you
would also sign on the purchase order?

Yes, indeed it happened, but I would seek my boss's
instruction.

Right, and he may okay you on the phone and you would
sign on the form?

Yes.

Before you were promoted to the present position, did it
happen that you would receive the material request form
from the site; you did do this kind of job before?

Yes.

So you did do this kind of job before. The site staff
would write to you -- say for instance, if the site

staff were to write in -- let me backtrack a little bit.

- 16 -
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You learnt from the news that some solder materials
containing lead were used, that caused all these
problems?

A. Now I know.

Q. On the site with the plumbing work, the copper pipes,
they have to use the solder materials to joint the pipe;
you know about this?

A. No, I don't know about this.

Q. When you received the request form and produced the
purchase order, you must have been exposed -- have some
experience of seeing these soldering materials?

Let me put it this way. Have you received any order
form or request form that says certain reels of solder
wire or certain boxes of solder strip -- solder wire,
solder strip, do you remember seeing them or do you know
anything about them?

A. I don't guite remember. After so many years, I have
a hazy idea. I have so many orders every single day.

I don't think I can remember all of these different
terms.

Q. Are you saying that for these two things --

A. These two things, I have never seen them. I don't know
whether I have seen them, because that was so many years
ago, because they didn't order these two things alone.

In a single form there can be a few dozen items, and

- 17 -

Transcript by DTI Corporation Asia, Limited



Annex: Realtime English Transcription based on floor / Simultaneous Interpretation

Commission of Inquiry into
Excess Lead Found in Drinking Water Day 39

I can't quite remember whether they ordered these two
items in the form.

Q. So the site workers, you know that when the site workers
faxed the request form to you, that's when you were
dealing with this area of work, so when the request form
was faxed to you, you would just replicate the wording
onto the purchase order?

A. Not replicate. I typed out the words.

Q. In the process, there wouldn't be a step where you would
check the materials sought by the site staff, like let's
say X faucet or whatever -- would you check whether this
item was an approved item? You would not take this
step, would you?

A. No, because when I ordered the materials, let's say
copper pipes, PVC pipes, and there were contracts, and
we Jjust check the prices. We are talking about minor
hardware items. Our awareness was that we would place
order with these hardware companies.

Q. I understand, but minor hardware items, they may have
been vetted and approved?

A. I don't know. When I was in the post, I didn't know
about it.

Q. So for larger items or more important items, you would
have the supply contract?

A. Yes, they have the supply contract. There is

- 18 -
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a standard. If there is a supply contract, we would
check against the contract and place the order.

Q. So for those items, even if they ask for X, you would
understand that there was a formal procedure that you
would have a formal supply contract with the supplier,
and that would guarantee that only approved items would
be used, so you wouldn't have to check whether they were
in order, because the supply contract would be put
together on the basis of the approval?

A. That I'm not sure. I just work on the basis of the
contract.

As regards whether there was an approval, I didn't
know, I wouldn't know.

Q. Was it you who set up the supply contract?

A. It wasn't me. It wasn't me, because I was a clerk at
the time. When site orders came through, let's say
copper pipes, we just ordered them. For minor hardware
items, I would just deal with them accordingly.

Q. So your understanding is that either there was a supply
contract, so when you send the order to the suppliers,
they would know, under the supply contract, what brand
and specifications would be required?

A. Yes, 1if there is a supply contract for ABC, we would
just deal with ABC under the contract.

Q. For those items, minor hardware items, for which there

- 19 -
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are no supply contracts, they would be ordered when they
were needed.

A. Yes.

Q. There was no supply contract per se.

Did you ever think about how to make sure that the
items sought by the site staff were the materials
already approved? They may say paint, nuts and bolts,
the paint may be covered by a supply contract. But how
can you make sure that what they are seeking will be
governed by a certain standard? If they use a certain
wording in vague terms, would you just be typing exactly
the same wording and place an order with the supplier?

A. I didn't have this awareness at the time.

Q. So you would think that when the site staff made
a request, they should know what they are asking for, or
the suppliers would have the awareness that they should
be supplying the materials that would be in the order.
So either the site staff or the supplier would
understand what's in the order?

A. I don't understand what you said.

Q. Let me give you an example. In this incident, we
basically know that the whole incident happened because
the Housing Authority has approved soldering materials.
Soldering materials have been approved, vetted and

approved, let me tell you. What was approved was a reel
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of lead-free soldering material, and the brand is FRY
99C lead-free solder wire. So it is not just this brand
but a specific model under this brand. That's 215.2,

I showed you, that contained lead. You said you hadn't
seen in detail this document. But have you seen this
green reel of soldering material? (Indicating).

A. No.

Q. The problem is that notwithstanding the approval, the
site workers sent a request by fax and the head office
then proceeded to place an order with Prosperity for all
these materials. Prosperity delivered the materials to
the site. What they delivered were not these approved
FRY materials (indicating), maybe in small quantities,
but the vast majority of the materials delivered to the
site were these 50D flat solder strips, like this
(indicating) . Let me pause for a second. Have you seen
this kind of strip?

A. No.

Q. So that's how matters developed, so 50 lead strip had --
50 per cent is lead. So now, if you look at it from
a macro level, the wrong material was used, but where
did the error occur? That's why I asked you, was there
a mechanism where you receive the approved material list
and how would you order the correct material, you said

that it should be Mr Kwong's responsibility. The
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information we have is that some workers call the
correct material -- they call it solder wire. 1It's
wire. So for the longer lead strip, they call it the
solder strips.

So do we have a market terminology? We don't know,
but that's what workers have told us. There is solder
wire, it comes in a roll, and solder strips that come in
strips.

So the problem here is if workers only call it by
these names, whether it's wire or a strip, they don't
know what the composition is, so they might call it by
whatever name they are familiar with. So they don't
have this recognition. And the office staff, when you
see the word "wire", you order wire; when you see the
word "strip", you order strips. So workers, when they
use the wrong terminology or the wrong name, so that
error was passed on to Prosperity.

So Prosperity sees a bunch of procurement orders for
strips and wires, so Prosperity might then act on its
own understanding or what they understand of the terms
"wire" and "strip".

A. I follow.
Q. So that is the communication problem. So if nobody
intercepted and said, "You have to supply FRY", if you

just use your own terminology, then you might apply one
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set of terminology and your counterparty might respond
with their understanding of what that terminology means.
Essentially that is what is potentially happening, so
that's why I asked you.

Have you considered that when the construction site
workers write orders, would they have an accurate
description, if they might ask for solder wire or solder
strip, but it would not contain the term "FRY"?

A. Well, they have worked so many years on the construction
site. I think they would know what to use. For
example, if they ordered a hammer, do we have to think
about what their use is or whether they are going to use
it for a robbery or other purposes? I cannot
second-guess how they are going to use it or whether
it's compliant and all that.

Q. So you are saying they have the experience?

A. They have so many years of plumbing experience. They
should know what orders to place. From our perspective,
this is minor metal hardware. We don't know whether it
has been approved.

Q. So you are saying that they should know how to apply the
proper terminology?

A. Well, the person placing the orders should have the
relevant expertise, otherwise you wouldn't know whether

to write solder wire or solder strip.
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Q. And you don't have any recollection about these material
request forms? You say they have so many different
terms, and you've described all the request forms. So
would Prosperity know the difference between strips and
wires?

A. I don't know. I'm not Prosperity. I don't know whether
they would know the difference, and I wouldn't ask.

CHAIRMAN: I would like to ask you, the price list
Prosperity provided --

MR SHIEH: Page 2354.

CHAIRMAN: -- it seems that there's only three types of
solder. We only have this one; right?

MR SHIEH: We have the solder material.

CHAIRMAN: We have different solders: silver, stainless
steel. There are different materials. But regarding
solder strips, there are only two or three; right?

MR SHIEH: We have flux and we have the different brand
names.

CHAIRMAN: Prosperity only has this one page?

A. Yes, that the gave us.

CHAIRMAN: Okay.

MR SHIEH: So your work just involves checking, and you
don't necessarily comply with this price list, there
might be some bargaining for discounts?

A. Yes, correct.
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Q.

So if you place a bigger order, you might get a bigger
discount?

Yes.

There's a standard price and sometimes you can get

a bulk discount. So that is what Jess would do; they
would do it over the phone?

Right.

You say you will check whether you have placed the wrong
order, so when they ordered X, we would have to look at
the price and the quantity. So, if there was

a discount, you need to make sure that a discount was
applied?

Yes.

So how do you know what the discount was? Would they
write it down on the request form?

Yes, they would provide the information.

They would give you the price list, the quotation, and
after bargaining, finally --

The counterparty, they would also give us the final
price or the discount percentage.

So you have a set of documents recording the final
price, and you would formulate a purchase order, and you
would have to ensure the price, the quantity, the
material, and so on. Then it would either be signed by

you Or your boss?
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A. That is the work flow.
Q. So you have no special recognition of brand names?
A. No.
Q. It's not your area of expertise.

So Ho Biu Kee -- well, plumbing involves a lot of
components. We are just looking at soldering material
here. So your understanding, over the years, when they
placed orders for solder, do you have any recollection
of whether they ordered strips or wire?

A. We just follow what the construction site staff ordered.
So A might tell B but they won't tell me.

CHAIRMAN: This price list -- so when Ho Biu Kee places --

A. It's not all sundry metal. This price list was sent

from Ho Biu Kee. They also send this list to different
companies. It's just that different companies have
different discounts. They are very like a department
store, they have everything. They have the mainstream

products.

CHAIRMAN: So this is one of many price lists?

A.

Correct.

MR SHIEH: We also have some esoteric material.

There's just too much.
They would have to quote individually.
Yes.

So we have a mainstream product list, a mainstream price
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list. They give you a standard price list?

A. I think that's what they are doing.

Q. I would like to direct you to some documents. Please
refer to bundle S1, page 194. This is a purchase order.
In the bottom right-hand corner, we have Wai and Catlin.

A. That's myself.

Q. When we see these purchase orders -- I won't go through
them one by one -- we have Catlin and Wai, Wai refers to
you. It is part of your name. So is your name attached
to Catlin's as well? Sometimes it's just Catlin and
sometimes your name is attached. So how do we determine
the buyer?

Let's take a look at page 200. The buyer there is
just you, and at page 202, it's Catlin. You see it?

A. Yes.

Q. The signature on page 202, that is you. It's under
$100,000, so it's you. So when do you determine whose
buyer name to attach?

A. Who drafted the PO. If I drafted the PO, then I will
attach my name. The name just refers to who drafted the
PO.

Q. So, up to now --

A. Not now, not anymore.

Q. But in 20137

A. Well, sometimes staff take vacation.
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Q.

So you fill in, you make a cameo appearance every now
and then?

So if you see page 208, we have an attached PO. The
material had already been delivered and we have some
special cases.

So normally you wouldn't be involved?

That's correct.

So that might be a special case.

Right.

So there may have been a verbal order that they
delivered, and then you had to attach a postdated PO.
They might need the material tonight, they would have
them delivered, and then tomorrow we would send the PO.
So those are special cases.

Okay.

So, in your witness statement, you said that you would
send the purchase order to the construction site. So,
when people deliver the material, they need to take
delivery, they have to ensure the quantity is correct?
Yes, they have to verify it.

They have to ensure the quantity is correct and it's
actually delivered, but they won't know what you have
ordered. They won't know, right; is that correct?
They requested the material so they should know what

material would be arriving.
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Q.

So you think that you don't need to fax them the PO
because your PO is just based on their instructions, so
you should know what his writing is based on your
instructions.

Right.

And there is no reason for them to suspect that you've
got it wrong?

If I have got it wrong, they would ring up straightaway.
If the delivered items are wrong --

They would ring up.

Right. So routinely, they told you ten items, and then
you would order the ten items, and in theory ten items
would be delivered, and the delivery would be in order.
If you got it wrong, they would give you a shout, and if
they were delivered in half --

Yes. They would chase --

A partial delivery, if five were delivered, they would
chase up. Who?

Yes, they would chase the procurement staff.

And your staff would then be chasing Prosperity, "Why
not ten, why five?" So it is procurement staff who 1is
communicating with Prosperity. So the site staff would
only communicate with the head office. If follow-up had
to be made, you would follow up with Prosperity?

Yes, normally, yes.
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Q.

A.

Would they know anyone from Prosperity?
Yes, the delivery note would have the number. I'm not

sure whether they would ring up.

CHAIRMAN: Would they normally do so?

A.

They would call them. If they called them, they
wouldn't tell me. I don't know whether they called

Prosperity.

CHAIRMAN: Mr Shieh put a question. Let me put a question

MR

also. There was some evidence to say -- Mr Shieh
mentioned the scenario where they ran out of materials,
and it was said that, let's say, solder strip, and if
Prosperity ran out of solder strip, then Prosperity
would supplement with item B instead of item A.

No. If they ran out, we would ask whether the supplier
would have the materials. We would not have anything
delivered to the site that they didn't want.

SHIEH: So there was a saying that Ho Biu Kee placed the
order, let's say for ten boxes of certain things, but
somehow Prosperity didn't have ten boxes available and
Prosperity might deliver five, and for the other five
they would deliver something else. So if this scenario
occurs, what should you do? You would follow up?

If they ran out of materials, we would call the site to
say —- because the next consignment would not be due

until two months, we would leave it to their decision.
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So we would communicate.

Q. Whether the materials were in stock, there would be
proper communication? You would know from Prosperity
that the materials were not in stock, and then it would
be for the site staff to decide whether they would
accept any substitute; there is no guesswork at all?

A. Yes. Our head office is not on the site. We don't know
about their progress. We don't know what they needed.
So how would we change this for them?

Q. Would there be any substitute order, ultimately? Let's
say in your PO you have ten boxes of something, and
Prosperity turned around and said, "I have five in
stock", and then, "I suggest that you take the five",
and then for the remaining five, let's say they suggest
some substitutes, you ask the site staff and the site
staff might accept this, and then you tell Prosperity to
send the five boxes and also the remaining five, you
have a substitute product. So in the PO would you
specify that?

A. No, there are no substitutes.

Q. So the scenario that we depicted would be a hypothetical
situation? In the light of your experience, this never
happened. You are merely saying that if this does
occur, then you would suggest that this is what you were

going to do, but in actual fact nothing like that ever
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happened?
A. Yes, indeed. They ran out of stock -- because of the

sheer demand they may run out.

Q. But substitute --

A. We never had any substitutes. Substitute means
something else. Let's say they want size 4.5 inches; if
they don't have 4.5 inches, only 3.5 inches. Can they
ask for substitute --

Q. Or brand A is out of stock and brand B would be just
good enough, would this be acceptable?

A. We wouldn't switch around from A to B randomly, no.

CHAIRMAN: Let's take a break.

MR SHIEH: I have some further questions. We might as well
take a morning break.

CHAIRMAN: 20 minutes.

(11.36 am)

(A short adjournment)

(11.59 am)

MR SHIEH: Madam Wong, some final questions.

You mentioned that the procurement staff received
the procurement form, the request form, by fax, and the
procurement staff would look at the quantity, the
details, and just replicate them on to the PO?

A. Yes.

Q. You also said that in theory, there is no question of
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the head office sending a purchase order to the
supplier, to order, let's say, ten boxes, and then the
supplier found that they ran out of stock, they only had
five boxes, and then they took the decision to
substitute the remaining five and delivered them to the
site, without telling the head office. Do you think
that this scenario would exist? From your
understanding, if the supplier ran out of stock, they
would communicate with you, the head office, I mean?

A. Yes.

Q. So would there be a situation -- this is hypothetical --
where the PO was sent to the supplier to order ten
boxes, for example, the supplier looked at the PO and
they had only five, but they had substitutes of
a similar nature, and the supplier would take the
decision that they deliver five boxes plus five reels
and deliver them to the site, and the work staff looked
at them, they were similar, and they just used them
nevertheless? When the invoice was sent back to head
office, you wouldn't check these sundry items -- prices
were the same, the site staff didn't complain -- you
just paid because the substitute was similar?

A. We were not taking delivery so we didn't know what they
delivered.

Q. Right. If the site staff chose to take the substitutes,
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you wouldn't know, and then if they took the
substitutes, the invoice might not match with the PO?

A. We would ask if they didn't match. If they switched the
items around and if they typed the same item, we
wouldn't know.

Q. Let's say the PO said ten boxes. The problem is we
can't locate the whole set of POs, and we can only make
logical deduction. If you said ten boxes and they had
only five, and then they sent the five boxes plus five
reels to the site, and they just needed the soldering
materials, and the site staff accepted them all. 1In
fact, they took them and didn't tell the head office,
the head office saw the invoice subsequently, and that
didn't match the PO because the PO ordered ten boxes,
but the invoice said five boxes plus five reels. The
prices were similar, not that different. Under these
circumstances, it's all a matter of pricing.

If the price, the cost wouldn't make that much of
a difference, would you accept it nonetheless?

A. No. If they don't match up -- we would ask, if they
don't match up.

Q. Has that scenario ever happened?

A. No, not that I know of. Not that I -- for the cases
that I dealt with, no.

Q. When the invoice came through, there must be a step for
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you to check the prices quoted in the invoice against
the PO?

A. Well, it was at a very late stage that the invoice came
through. We received the DN first.

Q. But you pay according to the invoice, so there would be
a DN and the invoice; there was a step for you to check
the invoice against the PO and the DN, to make sure that
the PO and the delivered items and the price that you
had to pay would match up?

A. Yes.

Q. So in the light of your experience -- we don't have the
POs but in your memory, there wouldn't be a situation
where you asked for ten items and the DN and the invoice
didn't match up with the PO?

A. No.

Q. These minor hardware items, you would also go through
this procedure?

A. What procedure?

Q. Well, these are minor hardware items.

A. You were saying that they delivered five boxes but
instead of that they delivered five boxes plus five
reels.

Q. And they charged you for the five boxes and the five
reels.

A. We don't have to look at the prices. We look at the
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items. If they don't match up, we would ask.

Q. So it doesn't matter how much they cost. If they don't
match up with the description, it doesn't matter how
much it cost; you would ask?

A. Yes.

Q. It wasn't you who did the checking, it was Jess who did
the checking?

A. Yes, indeed.

Q. We found that for the request forms to do with
Kai Ching, we can't find them, we can't locate them. We
don't even have a complete set of POs. It is through
Prosperity that we got the POs. What system do you have
to keep these documents? When is the cut-off point for
you to discard the documents?

A. Ho Biu Kee undertakes a lot of projects. After the
project -- after the final account, we will discard the
documents. The boss will say the project is over and
done with, and the documents can be destroyed, and we
don't keep them.

Q. But you have to file a tax return.

A. There's another colleague who is responsible. The
procurement department is doing the procurement.

Q. The boss would tell you that this set of documents can
be destroyed; would the boss say this?

A. Yes, the PO and the request form.
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Q. But do you know that for tax purposes you have to keep
the documents; if the Inland Revenue were to question
your tax return, you have to have the documents? Who
keeps the documents?

A. The accounting department.

Q. Who in the accounting department?

A. Madam Chung.

Q. So your understanding is that the request form after the
final account would be discarded and destroyed?

A. We won't keep them because of the sheer volume of these
documents.

Q. What about POs?

A. The same.

Q. And the DN also?

A. DN?

Q. Delivery notes.

A. No, the procurement department wouldn't keep them,
because the project was over and done with.

CHAIRMAN: You keep the invoice?

A. The invoices would be passed to the accounting for
payment. I don't know how they deal with the invoices.
Tax return, I don't have the experience.

MR SHIEH: Yes, for the invoices, you would pass them to the
accounting?

A. Yes.
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Q.

FEarlier on, I asked you about the request form and they
would use certain jargon and you said there were so many
items to be delivered, you would try to remember solder
strip or solder wire.

Now, for Shui Chuen O Estate, file K3, page 2355.
This document is attached to your witness statement.
That was in 2014. It's got nothing to do with Kai Ching
or Kwai Luen. Someone from the site faxed this to the
head office.

From your statement, you told us that there is this
request from the site, all these items were requested by
the site staff, and you got a quotation from Tung Wah.

In the middle, there are prices, handwritten prices:
$25 for silver brazing, solder wire, 67 per pound; can
you see that?

Yes.

This request form was faxed to the head office. Was it
you who sought quotation?

Not me. I can't remember who. The relevant staff, I'm
not sure whether it was Ms Chan or Ms Chiu. There is

a high turnover rate in that department. Purple joined
later, in 2015.

So you cited this example. That's because when you
prepared this statement, you looked at the operation,

you cited this as an example to show how you sought
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quotation and how you decided on the supplier, and that
is not what you did?

A. Right.

Q. Seeking quotation wasn't you. Item 6, solder wire; do
you see that?

A. Yes.

Q. At the material time, before you were promoted to this
present position, you saw this kind of request form
quite a lot?

A. In 2014, I started doing what I am doing.

Q. Before that.

A. Before that?

Q. I'm talking about before that. So this form has been
used in Ho Biu Kee?

A. Yes.

Q. So, not in 2014, but before that, before you were
promoted to the present position, you had to deal with
these request forms a lot, you had to convert them to
POs?

A. Yes.

Q. There is an example, "solder wire", here. One of the
items is solder wire. You may say that there are so
many items in a project, but by common sense, in your
day-to-day work, you see there is Powerflux, so you must

have some memory of the Powerflux. Do you remember
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Powerflux being ordered?

What I am saying is there may be things that would
be difficult to remember, but these are routinely seen
almost every day and this would occur almost every
single day. Why is it that you don't remember whether
someone ordered solder wires or solder strip?

A. At that time, whether there were these two things,

I don't quite remember.

Q. Let's not talk about solder wire or solder strip. Let's
say soldering materials. Do you remember these
soldering materials?

A. No, I don't remember. There are so many request forms
every single day. There are so many terms. I don't try
to make it a point to remember them. After my job is
done, I would leave it aside. I won't take office work
home.

COMMISSIONER LAI: Is this Fan Sau Peng?

A. Yes.

COMMISSIONER LAI: This is the officer in charge for
blocks 5 and 6 of Kai Ching?

A. Yes.

COMMISSIONER LAI: He was responsible for blocks 5 and 6 of
Kai Ching. He would ask for solder wire? Whenever he
asked for solder material, it was always solder wire?

A. He filled out this form. He filled out this form. But
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at the time.

COMMISSIONER LAI: Was it all --

A. My memory is fuzzy. I can't recall.

COMMISSIONER LAI: Another thing, the affected estates,

Kai Ching and Kwai Luen, Mr Chan Siu Wah and Wong

Kwai Hung, when they requested material they asked for
solder strips that contained lead. So I would like to
know, for other projects, you come across SO many people
requesting material, you just write down verbatim what
they asked. The other estates were not affected, so did
they ask for solder wire? So when they made phone

calls —--

A. They have to provide a handwritten form. We don't
accept phone -- when there are too many phone calls, we
have so many calls, we might not remember that, so we
need a black and white, written submission.

MR SHIEH: So the site requirements --

COMMISSIONER LAI: So in your recollection do they always
ask for solder wire in the other projects, other people?

Because the affected estates are Chan Siu Wah and
Wong Kwai Hung, and they had requested solder strips,
and the unaffected estates, on many other projects, the
other foremen or site supervisors, when they put in this
request form, did they also ask for solder wire?

A. Are you asking at that time or --
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COMMISSIONER LATI: At the time.

A. It's so many years ago, I can't remember, if you ask me
was it exactly solder wire or solder strip.

COMMISSIONER LAI: Do you recall what happened in Lung Yat
Estate in Tuen Mun when they requested material?

A. It was at the same period. We would respond to their
request verbatim. We would respond. In every
construction site, they would ask for materials every
day. There are so many types of material.

COMMISSIONER LAI: Theoretically, other estates ask for
solder wire, because there's no problem with solder
wire. Your other projects do not have problems, so
theoretically everybody asked for solder wire, so you
would purchase solder wire and nothing occurred. The
only incident, the only estates where incidents occurred
were in Kai Ching and Kwai Luen, and they purchased
solder strips. So all your request forms should have
indicated solder wire, otherwise we would have other
affected estates. That's what I'm thinking.

A. Theoretically, yes.

COMMISSIONER LAI: But you don't recall?

A. There are so many different types of sundry hardware.

CHAIRMAN: Have you seen request forms where they ask for
high-temperature solder strip-?

A. Now, yes, I see them now. You asked me have I seen
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them, and I have seen them recently, now.

CHAIRMAN: After the incident?

A. Right.

MR SHIEH: That's a new terminology?

A. Right.

CHAIRMAN: (Chinese spoken).

A. They say high-temperature solder wire, not solder strip.

CHAIRMAN: Okay.

MR SHIEH: I have another question regarding Tung Wah, the
supplier. So are you saying that procurement staff
would communicate with Tung Wah and they would provide
a quotation, and you would compare that with
Prosperity's price list on page 2354. So I would like
to ask you: here it asks for 100 rolls of solder wire,
but Tung Wah had given a quotation based on pounds,
$67 per pound.

If you compare that to Prosperity, for solder wire,
they sell it per roll. Per pound is solder strip.

So I would like to know, your quotation, when people
give you $67 per pound, how do you make a comparison
with Prosperity, because you have to compare side by
side the two prices?

A. We have a quotation from Tung Wah. We have to compare
that against what they have available. But the

colleagues —--
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Q.

I understand. I want to know -- you didn't get this
quotation, I understand, but you cannot identify who got
this quotation?
There's no name attached.
So I'm interested -- we have a request for solder wire,
and here they ask for 100 rolls. Things that come in
rolls, so we would conjecture it's rolls of this
material (indicating green reel).

Then another of your colleagues went to a get
a quotation from Tung Wah and they have a handwritten
quotation of $67 per pound, so the units are incorrect.
You ask for a roll and the quotation you get in return
is per pound. So how many pounds are there per roll, if
there is a conversion?
I'm not the person involved.
And you want to compare who's cheaper, Prosperity or
Tung Wah. So Prosperity, they only have one item that

is quoted in pounds. That is WL50F flat strip.

COMMISSIONER LAI: On page 2337, paragraph (j), they

explain.

MR SHIEH: 1It's about $145 per pound. So some colleagues

seem to be familiar with these different units.
What do you mean by that?
That is, a colleague is aware that solder wire comes in

rolls, and when they look at Prosperity's price lists
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and do a calculation, they know that lead-free solder
wire, one roll, how much is that per pound.

Then if you compare with the Tung Wah price --

A. Well, they won't compare it with Tung Wah, because these
items, sundry metal, minor metal hardware, we will
purchase from Prosperity.

Q. But looking at page 2337, in paragraph (j), you have
highlighted this -- you have illustrated this practice.
You say that the Shui Chuen O project, you had obtained
a quotation from Tung Wah Metal, which is also one of
your suppliers. They would not be supplying minor metal
hardware?

A. Yes, they do supply minor metal hardware.

Q. So you get a quotation, and they give you a quotation of
$67 per pound, which was significantly lower than that
supplied by Prosperity, and Prosperity's solder wire was
about $145 per pound. It's HK$160 per 500 grams, and
500 grams is equal to 1.1 pounds.

So some colleague took that step, that they should
compare that with the FRY price. It says $145 per
pound, net price of $160 per 500 grams, but I don't see
how it's calculated.

So one of your colleagues knows that they want
solder strips, and which item amongst Prosperity's list

should they compare against? Because in Tung Wah it's
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quoted per pound, and how does that compare so the
Prosperity price list; how much does it cost per pound?
You have a colleague who's aware how that compares to
the Prosperity price list. Somebody knows how to check
these prices, in your company.

It might not be you personally, but from your
statement it seems that your colleague can make the
differentiation and calculation; is that correct?

A. Yes, looking at the price list.

Q. So you might not be aware, but the person handling the
material request form and those colleagues giving the
quotations, they are aware?

A. They had asked for a quotation from Tung Wah. My
understanding is that they asked for a quotation on
ladders and trolleys. They don't get their solder wire
from Tung Wah.

Q. They didn't do it out of convenience.

A. They didn't do it out of convenience. They see that
they have this item and they filled it up.

Q. So this form has a bunch of other material that you need
a quotation from Tung Wah, so you faxed it to Tung Wah,
and Tung Wah had given you a quote for each item, but
you weren't going to ask them for solder wire. It's
just that you need now to produce the witness statement

and you see that you can make this comparison to prove
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that you might have a lot of faith in Mr Chow of
Prosperity, so even if somebody gives you a cheaper
quotation, you won't consider that?

A. Yes.

Q. So, when something is faxed from the construction site
and you need a quotation from Prosperity, when you were
a clerk you had done this work. So you had also come
across the stage where you want to see whether they want
a strip or a wire and you have to compare it to the
Prosperity price list, and then you start bargaining
with them; you have gone through that?

A. Yes.

Q. So you had to go through that procedure of checking
whether they want a wire or solder and you have to check
the price, but you don't recall the names of the solder
wire and solder strips?

A. That's correct.

Q. Lung Yat Estate -- just now counsel asked you -- he said
Chan Siu Wah said that the unknown Ho Biu Kee female
staff called him and asked him to write "solder wire" in
his material request form and you said you didn't do
that. You had not asked staff to do that either.

A. No.

Q. This might be obvious. If you knew what you were to

order, was i1t necessary for him to write another name or
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a different name on his request form?

A. I would ask him to write clearly, otherwise how would
I know what he wanted? We rely on his submission and
make procurement. I don't want him to change. I'm not
on the site. I don't know what the work progress is.

Q. So, if his content is not accurate and you want him to
clarify; if he writes X, are you saying there's no
reason for him to write Y, because he's the one
requesting material?

A. That's correct.

Q. Now, to be more detailed, what he's saying is that on
that day, when he made those request forms, when he
asked for the material he wanted solder strip, he faxed
for solder strip, but for whatever reason, Prosperity
delivered rolls to the Lung Yat Estate construction
site, and not long afterwards he received a phone call
from an unknown female staff from Ho Biu Kee, saying
that in the future your requests should write "solder
wire". That's what he's saying.

So, being a person in charge of the procurement
department, what view do you have of his claim? Does it
make sense.

A. No.

Q. Is it reasonable? You don't agree? You said it's them

who needed the materials. It's not for you to instruct
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them.

A. Yes, I wasn't on the site. I'm not sure how high they
have built to, whether they were dealing with aggregates
or whether they were installing the pipes. We don't
know what they need. They may be installing the
sanitary fittings and they may be asking for the
sanitary fitments. It's only then we know what they
want. We don't go to the site.

Q. Page 194. I asked you about whether the POs had to be
changed or whether substitutes would be needed.

Page 194. This PO, it says "Revised"; can you see that?

A. Yes, 1t has been revised.

Q. Just take a glance. This revised PO, what has been
revised?

A. Quantities.

Q. Just quantities?

A. Same think but quantities differed.

Q. Not a revision of the items from A to B?

A. No.
Q. Can you explain -- let's take an item -- to tell us how
the quantities changed, "solder strip". 550 originally,

no change there?
A. No change for solder strip.
Q. What has been changed?

A. The nuts and bolts.
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Q. So there would be a bracket for the changes?

A. Yes.

MR SHIEH: Please hang on a second.

Thank you very much. I have no further questions.
Cross-examination by MR PENNICOTT
(A1l questions from Mr Pennicott were in English)

MR PENNICOTT: Ms Wong, can you hear me through the
headphones?

A. Yes.

Q. I want to pursue with you a few questions on a topic
that Commissioner Lai raised a few minutes ago.

Before I do that, can I ask you this: you became
Mr Ho's PA in 1997, you'wve told us; is that right?

A. No.

Q. When did you become his PA?

A. 1998-1999.

Q. Can you tell us this: when who did you first become
involved with the purchasing of materials on behalf of
HBK?

A. When I first joined, I did the purchasing, I faxed
things out, I would do the typing; but for procurement,
not purely procurement, because when I first joined,

I wasn't working for HBK; I worked at another company
owned by this boss. But for actual procurement, I think

1999 and after 1999.
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Q. That's helpful.

Can I ask you please to be shown file F2, page 1340.

CHAIRMAN: Who hasn't switched off their phone, please do
so. Please switch off your mobile phone.

MR PENNICOTT: Ms Wong, this is a list of 16 unaffected
estates constructed by China State. Do you see that?

A. Yes.

Q. In respect of 11 of those unaffected estates, your
company was the subcontractor. Do you see that listed
in the middle column?

A. Yes, I can see that.

Q. As I say, these are unaffected, lead-free estates.
Would you have been involved in the procurement of
materials for these unaffected estates, to the best of
your recollection?

A. Yes, I would have been involved from time to time. I
wouldn't be there the whole time for this.

Q. Do you have any recollection of any of your site
supervisors or officers in charge of the subcontracts
on site ordering solder strips-?

A. I don't remember.

Q. Could I ask you, please, to go to bundle Hl, page 121.
Ms Wong, this is a similar schedule to the one I have
just shown you. It lists the 12 unaffected estates

constructed by Shui On. Do you follow?
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A. Yes.
Q. In respect of 11 out of the 12 unaffected estates,

again, your company, HBK, was the subcontractor; do you
see that?

Yes.

Ms Wong, again, would you have been involved, to the
best of your recollection, in procuring the materials in
relation to these unaffected estates?

Even if I was involved, maybe one or two cases, I wasn't
the one fully responsible for the procurement. You
asked me whether I have procured for these sites.

I don't think I can answer categorically. Even if I was
involved, I wouldn't have been doing it full-time.
That's my recollection.

If it wasn't you, Ms Wong, who would it have been?

Some other colleagues. Some have already quit. Some
already left. These are sites that go back a long time.
I see.

I can't really say for sure. As I said earlier on,
procurement, we have a very high turnover rate. As to
who did it, I don't quite remember, really.

I assume it follows, therefore, that you have no
recollection of whether or not solder strips as opposed
to solder wire was ordered by your site staff in respect

of these unaffected estates?
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A. Yes, right.

Q. Just finally on this topic, if you can go, please, to
file G1l, page 628.

Ms Wong, this is the equivalent schedule but this
time it relates to seven unaffected estates constructed
by Paul Y. Do you see that?

A. Yes.

Q. In respect of two of the estates, again, your company
was subcontractor for blocks 1, 2 and 3 of the Upper
Ngau Tau Kok Estate, and the subcontractor for Tin Ching
Estate; do you see that?

A. Yes.

Q. In respect of those two estates, Ms Wong, again, do you
have any recollection as to being involved with the
purchase of plumbing materials in relation to those two
estates?

A. I don't guite remember.

Q. Okay. All right.

There is one final question, Ms Wong. I wonder if
you could be shown, please, bundle S1, page 128.

A. Yes.

Q. Could I ask you, please, to look at the entry dated
14 October 2011, the third one down; do you see that?

A. Yes.

Q. Against that date, one sees "FRY", 20 rolls, and then
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a box of WL50D material; do you see that?

Yes.

As I understand it, Ms Wong, the effect of your evidence
is that what the site staff would have ordered is one
box of solder wire and one box of solder strips. 1Is
that right?

Can you say that again?

Yes. My understanding of the effect of your evidence is
that in respect of that entry, what the site staff,

Mr Chan, would have ordered is one box of solder wire
and one box of solder strips. Is that correct?

Well, from the table, I can't determine what Chan

Siu Wah had ordered.

CHAIRMAN: One block of lead-free, there's 20 rolls in one

MR

MR

box, and one box of WL50D is 55 pounds, so it's one box
of each. So if Chan Siu Wah was the site supervisor, he
ordered these two items, one box of each. I'm telling
you there's 20 rolls in a box and 55 pounds in one box
of strip. If I'm correct, then he ordered a box of
each; is that correct?
Yes.
PENNICOTT: Thank you, Mr Chairman. No further
questions.

Cross—-examination by MR LAM

LAM: Ms Wong, I would like to direct you to S1,
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page 102. Let's take a look at page 103. Do you have
that?

A. Yes.

Q. We have some invoice, on 24 April. This is your company
address, in Cheung Sha Wan, and the contact person,

Ms Chung, you mentioned she was in the accounting
department, and Mr Leung -- is that Mr Leung Wai Kin?

A. Yes.

Q. So, in other words, if they need to contact somebody,
they need to contact Ms Chung or Mr Leung regarding
WL50D?

A. No. This is issued by Prosperity.

Q. So, if they need to contact people, they would have to
contact either Ms Chung or Mr Leung?

A. Correct.

Q. But they might not need to make any phone call at all if
the order was correct; is that the case?

A. They typed them in and I don't know who that contact
person was.

Q. In other words, if they need to contact these people.
These are the two contact persons. Of course you know
who the contact persons are.

A. What do you mean, the contact person?

Q. Regarding the invoice. We have a delivery note --

A. Right.
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Q. So, regarding this invoice, if there are any problems,
those two persons --

CHAIRMAN: That's what is written there.

A. That's what is written there. But whether they did make
contact --

MR LAM: We don't know whether they made contact.

Then we look at the delivery note. If we look at
the delivery note number, it's the same, and the contact
person is also Mr Leung Wai Kin?

A. Yes, that's what's written there.

Q. I also see Leung Wai Kin has signed his name there.
Then, on page 105, we have an invoice. Ms Chung and
Mr Leung are the contact persons. The order here was
for solder wire and solder strip. But we don't have
a delivery note attached, because if you refer to
page 102, on 4 July, you don't see a DN for 4 June.

We don't see it delivered to that site. We haven't
found that.

So the delivery note on page 104, the contact person
was Mr Leung Wai Kin, and he also took delivery. He
signed.

CHAIRMAN: Could you repeat?
MR LAM: If you did issue this invoice, if you did pay this
invoice, we would also have a delivery note like the one

on page 104, and the contact person would be Mr Leung
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A.

Wai Kin; 1s that correct?

I cannot be sure.

CHAIRMAN: Well, it is not necessary. The invoices, a lot

A.

MR

of times have these two people as contact persons.
(Chinese spoken).
LAM: Is it possible that the delivery note contact
person would be Wong Kwai Hung?

Some were Wong Kwai Hung.

Because we see a lot of Mr Wong Kwai Hung in pages 107
and 108.

Yes.

So I would like to ask, did you know at the time, in
Kwai Luen Estate, when did Mr Wong Kwai Hung take
responsibility?

Starting from the beginning.

So, in the first delivery note on page 104, that is
Mr Leung Wai Kin.

The two of them were always together on the site, and
each construction site, we just have one or two
authorised people who can take delivery. If we have
only one person only, if he is sick, then we cannot just
stop all the work. We need another person to stand by
as a spare.

So, in Kwai Luen Estate, Mr Leung Wai Kin and Wong

Kwai Hung, they could take delivery. So, if there's
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a contact person, it would usually be these two people?

A. Unless they are very busy or they are in meetings, they
would use a trusted colleague's signature to take
delivery.

Q. I would like to direct you to page 117. The person who
took delivery, their name was Fu?

A. One of the workers. They felt he was trustworthy, he
could take delivery.

MR LAM: I have no other questions.

CHAIRMAN: Nobody with questions?

Further cross-examination by MR SHIEH

MR SHIEH: Just now, you said that sometimes the names would
be copied and pasted --

A. I'm referring to Prosperity.

Q. The purchase orders, Ho Biu Kee's purchase orders, were
not handwritten; they were computer generated.

A. Right.

Q. Do you have copies?

A. No.

Q. Why?

A. There's not much storage memory in the computer. We
just had a little bit of memory.

Q. The hard copies might be discarded.

A. Yes.

Q. The invoice would be forwarded to the accounting
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department.
A. Yes.

Q. But these are generated from computer files.

A. Right. We wouldn't keep them.

Q. You delete them?

A. Yes, because we are not a big company.

Q. So after a project you discard hard copies, and even the
computer files would be deleted?

A. Yes.

Q. Another area I would like to follow up: K2/2337, the
Tung Wah quotation, how you did the conversion.

In paragraph (j) of your witness statement, you said

Tung Wah has a quotation of $67 per pound for solder
wire, and then you have a conversion calculation. You
say, compared to Prosperity, Prosperity was $145 per
pound, the net price was $160 per 500 grams, and I don't
know how it's calculated.

A. This is what colleagues told me. That's what I heard.

Q. But Jess also refers to something similar. You don't
know how it's calculated? So I think Prosperity's price
is 160 --

A. I know their price is 160.

Q. But the price list says 190.

A. But the quotation -- that's just the menu price. They

always type $190.
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Q. (Chinese spoken).

A. So this year material might be expensive, they increase
prices. That's what they say. If their supplier can
give them a cheap price, they can give you cheaper. The
$160 is the current price.

Q. (Chinese spoken).

A. (Chinese spoken).

Q. So we might have a menu that says 160 now?

A. No, it still says 190.

Q. So that's not updated frequently?

A. (Chinese spoken).

Q. Okay, I understand. So it's currently $160.

A. Now. At that time, that was --

MR SHIEH: Okay, I'm aware of how it's calculated.

Re-examination by MR YEUNG

MR YEUNG: Ms Wong, just now Mr Lam asked you about
an invoice: page 103 of bundle S1.

Regarding the contact person, Ms Chung and Mr Leung,
as far as you know, back in April 2013, was there
a Mr Leung in the accounting department?

A. Yes.

Q. Was that Leung Wai Kin?

A. No.

Q. Ms Chung is which department?

A. From the accounting department.
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Q. Mr Leung is also the accounting department?

A. Yes.

CHAIRMAN: So this Mr Leung --

A. I don't know which person they are referring to. I said
there's high turnover. So I cannot recall who's who
now. Was he referring to Leung Wai Kin? I'm not sure,
because it was the other party that typed that.

CHAIRMAN: Okay. In the future, the POs, don't describe
them.

WITNESS: Yes, noted.

CHAIRMAN: Okay. We will continue at 2.30 in the afternoon.

Thank you.
(The witness withdrew)
(12.57 pm)
(The luncheon adjournment)
(2.31 pm)

MR YEUNG: Chairman, with your permission, I'd like to call
Mr Leung Wai Kin.
MR LEUNG WAI KIN (affirmed)
CHAIRMAN: Please take a seat.
Examination-in-chief by MR YEUNG
MR YEUNG: Mr Leung, your full name is Leung Wai Kin,
L-E-U-N-G, W-A-I, K-I-N7?
A. Correct.

Q. Some background information first. What education level
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do you have?

A. Form 5.

Q. Form 5 level.

A. I have studied TI for four years.

Q. "TI" means Technical Institute?

A. Yes.

Q. When did you join Ho Biu Kee?

A. 1997 or 1998.

Q. When you first joined HBK, what did you do?

A. I was an apprentice.

Q. When did you become a skilled worker?

CHAIRMAN: TI, what did you study?

A. I studied electricity and the panel work.

MR YEUNG: When did you become a skilled worker?

A. No, I never sat for any exam.

Q. In Ho Biu Kee, what is your position?

A. PM, project manager.

Q. When were you promoted to this project manager post?

A. February 2012 or thereabouts.

Q. As PM of HBK, can you describe your job description?

A. Mainly, I would turn up on the site, to find out whether
there are any problems in the site work, any
inadequacies, any problems, and so on.

Q. When did you come across the connection of copper pipes

kind of work?
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A. About eight years ago, starting from the Un Chau Estate
project.

Q. Eight years ago? That was about 20087?

A. Yes, 2008 or 2009 or thereabouts.

Q. Do you know this person, Wong Kwai Hung?

A. Yes.

Q. When did you start knowing him?

A. I think it was 2006-2007.

Q. Under what circumstances did you know Mr Wong?

A. I was apprentice, I was semi-skilled, not yet skilled.
I helped Mr Wong, I worked under Mr Wong. When I worked
on the site, I worked under Mr Wong, and there was
a part where we had to put the holes there, and he took
over as the officer in charge.

Q. Let me put this to you: when did you start working on
this estate project?

A. 2012, May, or mid-2012.

Q. You have been promoted to be project manager at that

time?

A. Yes.

Q. For Kai Ching Estate -- let's specifically mention
Kai Ching Estate —-- what specifically did you do?

A. Mainly, I would try to find out if there are any
problems, any gaps, any hindrances, and also keep an eye

on the workers, whether there were any complaints, and
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SO on.

Q. In terms of progress, is it part of your portfolio?

A. Progress, I would find out about the progress, yes.

Q. You were the PM. Were you in charge of Kai Ching alone
or any other estates?

A. More than that. All the sites in our company.

Q. From your recollection, how many sites were there under
Ho Biu Kee?

A. A minimum of eight to nine.

Q. For Kai Ching Estate, were you in any way involved in
the transaction of soldering materials in Kai Ching?
The copper pipes, there was soldering materials for
that; were you involved in the transaction of the
materials?

A. No.

CHAIRMAN: Sample submission?

A. No.

MR YEUNG: Were you involved in the procurement or ordering
of soldering materials?

A. No.

Q. Let me put this to you. HBK, do you know about the
procedure for procurement?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Can you take us through the steps for material

procurement in Ho Biu Kee? Let's say i1f the site want
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A.

some materials, what next?

The officer in charge would place the order, and they
would request the quantities and the materials, and the
head office would place order for these quantities, and
then delivery would take place and the officer in charge
would check the materials and the quantities and he
would sign and put a stamp there.

The officer in charge, what criteria would be adopted to
decide on the materials to be used?

Say again, please.

The officer in charge, what criteria would be used to
determine the quantities of the materials to be used?
Well, depending on the progress of work. Everything
would be dependent on the work progress.

Were you involved?

No, no, I wasn't.

We know that in Kwai Luen Estate, your name is there.
Yes.

What was your position there, for Kwai Luen Estate
project?

I was a worker.

For Kwai Luen?

Yes.

Kwai Luen Estate, it was completed in 2014. 1In 2013,

there were so many areas of work, and you have already
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been promote as PM?

A. I was promoted in 2012.

Q. For the Kwai Luen project, you were PM at the time.

A. Yes.

Q. And you were still a worker?

A. Yes. No, in the employment contract, I got paid by the
head office, and we have to clock in and out, and my
card showed me as a worker. I have to go in and out of
the sites.

Q. You explained to us your role in Kai Ching. What about
Kwai Luen?

A. I would meet the site agent and the site manager to find
out whether there were any problems, any hindrances to
the progress. I would talk with the officer in charge.

Q. Kwai Luen Estate, who was in charge?

A. Wong Kwai Hung.

Q. Were you one of them?

A. No. I was responsible for this project as well.

Q. For Kwai Luen Estate, if they wanted soldering
materials, who would make a request for delivery?

A. The officer in charge would make the request.

Q. Who?

A. Wong Kwai Hung.

Q. Were you involved?

A. No.
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Q.

There are two papers I would like to refer you to.
S/104. This document is a delivery note, Prosperity
Building Materials Co Ltd, delivering materials to

Kwai Shing Circuit. The main contractor is Shui On. It
is dated 24 April 2013.

There are a number of items there, and the liaison
person, contact person, is Mr Leung Wai Kin.

Item 1: UK 50D flat solder strip, 110 pounds.

Ho Biu Kee took delivery of the materials, 28 April
2013 there, right next to the stamp of HBK; can you see
that?

Yes, got that, yes.

There is a character "Kin". Who is that?

It's me, my signature.

When you signed this DN, you signed on behalf of HBK and
took delivery of the materials?

Yes.

You said a moment ago the officer in charge was Wong
Kwai Hung. Why did you put your signature there? Why
did you take delivery of the materials?

We went to a meeting together with the officer in
charge. While I was there, the workers were already
checking the PO, and I asked them to check the materials
and put a stamp there. The site was a one-way access.

The officer in charge was in the site office. We had
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a meeting there, at the Shui On site office.

CHAIRMAN: Are you saying that it so happened that you had
a meeting, a site meeting?

A. Yes.

MR YEUNG: Mr Leung, the contact person is you.

A. There are more than one site. All the sites have my
name there, and my name would be put there. When
delivery took place, when the officer in charge was
there, I would leave the officer in charge's number
there. And I've got my name in all the Ho Biu Kee
sites.

Q. At the time when you saw the W50 solder strip, did you
know what the application was for?

A. I didn't know.

Q. You only knew that you would take delivery of this?

A. The staff was there, he was checking it against the PO
before applying the chop.

Q. Please take a look at another document: H1/122. Here,
we have an email. It was sent from Man Kwan Wa, and it
was dated 3 June 2013; the recipient,

hbkleung@yahoo.com.hk. Is that your email address?

A. Yes.
Q. The subject is "KSC -- Approval Material Form". It
says:

"Dear Kin,
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Please find the attached material approval letter
for your information."

So Mr Man, he was the AQCC at Kwai Shing Circuit,
and he notified you of the approval information, and the
approval information runs from page 123 to 128. Do you
see that?

A. Yes.

Q. So, on page 123, we have some information there. We see
item 4, "Brazing alloys and soldering alloys for copper
fittings system"; do you see that?

A. Yes.

Q. The next page, we have a sample submission, on page 128,
for example.

A. Yes.

Q. At the bottom, in the material description, in the
bottom-left corner we have this picture.

This email sent to you. Do you recall reading this
email?

A. I don't have a recollection. I don't have any
recollection, because I receive hundreds of emails per
day.

Q. So, if you had read the email, how would you process it?
So, as a PM, when you receive a material approval form
from the main contractor, what would you do?

A. No, I just read it as a piece of information.
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Q. Could you explain why would you treat it as such?

A. First of all, I wasn't the person submitting the
material. Second, I had a colleague who handled the
submission and he would liaise with the main contractor.

Q. You said your colleague was responsible for submission.
Who was that?

A. Mr Kwong.

Q. Did you participate in that work?

A. No.

Q. So what material did Mr Kwong submit to the main
contractor; were you aware?

A. No.

Q. Well, if you were not aware of what material, how would
you know that the material you receive at the
construction site received the approval?

A. I didn't hear you. Could you repeat?

Q. If you were not aware of this, then how would you know
the material at the site was approved by the main
contractor?

A. So you are saying --

CHAIRMAN: Listen to me. You are not responsible for

submitting this sample; Mr Kwong submitted the samples.
After submitting samples, it was approved. Then,
according to what you said, Mr Kwong would be aware?

Yes.
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CHAIRMAN: And you only glanced at the emails. You would
not commit it to memory. And Ho Biu Kee's counsel,

Mr Yeung, is asking you: we heard Mr Kwong's evidence.
Mr Kwong says that after submitting samples, his work
was completed. The procurement ladies would follow up,
but did not tell the procurement ladies -- he did not
tell them which material was approved, and you don't
know which is approved; you just receive this
information.

We heard Ms Wong from Ho Biu Kee, she said she
doesn't know anything. She just says she Jjust purchases
whatever the construction site staff ask for.

So your whole company, nobody knows what material
has to be ordered and whether it has been approved?

A. Well, if it has been approved, then the site should have
a memorandum in their letterbox. They have a document
box. It would be signed by the officer in charge, and
then it would be delivered to the office by the driver.

CHAIRMAN: Yes. What we hear is that you had one officer in
charge, Mr Chan Siu Wah, and he says he doesn't know
a thing. So who knows in the whole company?

A. It should be in the tray.

CHAIRMAN: He says he didn't even take a glance at it. So
even 1f he did glance at it, he would say he just took

note of it and by the time he wanted to order material,
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he would just order whatever he wanted? If it would be
solder strip, it would be solder strip; if it was
a valve, then it would be a valve. So was it the actual
material that was approved? Nobody knows, nobody asked.
So there's nobody in the whole company who knows what's
going on.

A. Well, normal procedure, it has to go back to the office.
It should be in the tray.

CHAIRMAN: So you don't know?

A. I am not full-time on that site, so I don't know what's
in their tray.

CHAIRMAN: Okay. Please continue.

MR YEUNG: So you are not aware of what the procurement
staff are doing?

A. No, I am not aware.

MR YEUNG: I have no further questions.

Cross—-examination by MR SHIEH

MR SHIEH: Mr Leung, you joined HBK around 1997-1998. When
did you complete your TIA course-?

A. It was 1998.

Q. So, before you graduated, you joined?

A. I joined HBK after form 5 and I took a night course.

Q. So you were learning on the job. You did not get your
full trade licence; you have an intermediate licence?

A. I've been promoted to intermediate?
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Q. Set aside the licences. You do understand a little bit
about welding and soldering?

A. Yes.

Q. So you are aware that you use solder material to connect
joints?

A. The original fittings have solder.

Q. So when you apprenticed, the soldering methods, you were
using components that already had -- so there were T
connectors, and outside you would heat up the T and the
contained solder would melt?

A. Yes.

Q. So, when you learned how to solder copper tubes, you do
not have to use external solder material?

A. No. No. When I apprenticed, I did not use copper
tubes. We had different tubes.

Q. So copper tubes were not commonplace?

A. It had a lining.

Q. But have you heard of even using the internal solder
joints —-- have you heard of another type of material,
the internal solder was not sufficient, you still have
to apply an external solder?

A. I heard of it.

Q. But have you used it?

A. At the T joint, we would have to apply another layer.

Q. So you have heard of the term "bo sek"?
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A. The officer in charge was Mr Wong and I had heard of it.

Q. So Mr Wong told you that if the outcome wasn't
satisfactory, so you would have to apply the solder
again?

A. Yes, if there was a leak -- you would see if there was
a leak, so sometimes our components, they are not
polished, there might be some leaks, so they would have
to be replaced.

Q. So they would have to be replaced and you have to
install it all again, rather than reapplying solder?

So, to put it short, in your hands-on experience,
you had not come across the green rolls? (Indicating).

A. Well, even before I was promoted, we were using original
components that contain solder.

Q. So you had not used these rolls of green solder
material?

A. No.

Q. Another type of solder material that we have seen, they
come in boxes like this, and they are strips
(indicating) . Have you used these?

A. No.

Q. Could you describe the joint you mentioned?

A. So before we apply solder, if you have two planks, you
have to apply the cement, but I need to have a tube in

the middle of the wall.
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Q. So you have to reserve a conduit to install a tube,
a pipe-?

A. Yes.

Q. So you need to know where that conduit lies.

A. Yes, and the diameter of the tube.

Q. So you need to reserve some space, so you don't want to
fill up the whole area with cement.

A. Yes.

CHAIRMAN: So you are saying, prior to the lead incident,
you had never seen these solder rolls?

A. No.

CHAIRMAN: Not us, you personally?

A. No.

MR SHIEH: But you have worked on the construction sites.
So, as you said, you are not based full-time at the
site, so, in general, when you appear on site, compared
to your office time, what's the ratio?

A. Well, if I'm on site A, and then I'll go to site B and
so on. So in a week I might have one or two days at the
office, but I won't be there permanently.

Q. So you do the rounds?

A. That's what the staff will call me, they call me the
general inspector. I will go to see if there are any
omissions or errors.

Q. So every say, would you go back to the office first,
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before you go do your rounds, or would you go back to
the office? You never go back to the office?

A. No.

Q. Because each site has its own office; you can do your
work in the office that is there?

A. Very rarely. I attend meetings, I go to the
contractor's office to attend meetings.

Q. So the colleagues you interact the most with are the
construction site workers, not office workers like Jess
Chiu and so on.

A. Yes.

Q. So when you appear in the sites, you will see workers
doing soldering work, welding work. Have you seen them
welding and soldering?

A. Well, we'll look at the external facade and will meet
with the site foreman and so on. But there are so many
sites --

Q. You cannot inspect the individual joints, but you do
this on a day-to-day basis. You don't conduct
a specific inspection. I know you are not there to
inspect the work quality, but you will see them at their
work; right?

A. Yes, I would see people working on the pipes, copper
pipes.

Q. Would you take a look at what they use to connect the
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pipes?

A. I didn't notice. I mainly saw someone working on the
outer wall, and work is in progress.

Q. Would you go into the site office?

A. Hardly ever.

Q. Would you check the quantities?

A. I would ask the officer in charge.

Q. So when you make the rounds, you would have face-to-face
contact; you interact with people?

A. I would try to find out whether there were any problems
on the site. We have meetings with the main
contractors, we have the BS, the site agent, the
manager, we would find out whether there are any
hindrances, any areas that fall behind schedule. We
would ask them whether there are any obstacles, and so
on.

CHAIRMAN: Slow down a little bit, please.

A. Okay.

MR SHIEH: When you make the rounds on the site, the
information that you get would be through the
face-to-face meetings and formal meetings and other
people. You didn't try to look at the work with your
naked eye?

A. No, I wouldn't look at them in detail.

Q. You wouldn't notice?
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A. Yes.

Q. So, on the site, when there are boxes of solder strip or
solder wire lying around on the site, you wouldn't have
remembered them?

A. No, I didn't notice at all.

CHAIRMAN: Would Mr Ho be making the rounds together with
you?

A. Say again, please.

CHAIRMAN: Would Mr Ho be making the rounds together with
you?

A. Mr Ho would go and meet the managers. He would have
a chat with the more senior people. I will be following
up on things.

CHAIRMAN: How often would Mr Ho -- I would like to find out
about Mr Ho. For individual sites, to what extent would
Mr Ho be involved? As you know, he is the top boss. He
is telling us that you are his right-hand man and you
are basically his aide, and you were involved in many,
many things, big and small. So would you say Mr Ho
knows as much as you do or less than you do, or would he
be interested in plumbing, because he's got other
business to attend to and his involvement -- how would
you describe his involvement, or the extent of his
involvement?

A. Maybe he would be on the site. When I was promoted, my
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boss would take me around the site, all the sites, and

he would brief me on the details about the sites.

CHAIRMAN: And, thereafter, would he be turning up on the

sites as often as you do, or would he just be there once
or twice a week? It's only when there are significant
decisions to make that he would deal with them, or would
he be very hands-on?

I would be turning up on the site on my own. The boss
wouldn't tell me where he would be turning up. He may

be going to site A or site B.

CHAIRMAN: You may not know, but after you visit site A, the

MR

next time you go to site A, the workers would tell you,
the agent would tell you, "The boss just turned up

a couple of days ago and asked this, that or the other".
As a matter of fact, in your company, you have a dozen
or so or less than a dozen people, or just a few at the
management level. I would like to find out about the
extent of your boss's involvement.

SHIEH: Let's take it a step at a time. Let's deal with
the situation where you and Mr Ho would be there and you
said Mr Ho would take you to the site at least once and
he would introduce you as Ah Kin and you would see Mr Ho
physically there, and as the project has got underway,
are you saying that -- listen to me, just hear me out --

Mr Ho wouldn't be turning up together with you that

- 79 -

Transcript by DTI Corporation Asia, Limited



Annex: Realtime English Transcription based on floor / Simultaneous Interpretation

Commission of Inquiry into
Excess Lead Found in Drinking Water Day 39

often?

A. As to whether he would turn up on the site on his own,
I don't know.

Q. He would take you around the sites at the beginning, and
then from your recollection you don't often go together
with Mr Ho, other than the first time, in general.
There are always exceptions to the rule but in general
he would take you down to the site once at the
beginning, and then he wouldn't appear together with
you?

A. No.

Q. You said he might turn up on his own, not together with
you, he might turn up on the site on his own but you
wouldn't know about it?

A. Yes, we wouldn't ask where he is off to.

Q. Would your colleagues be telling you, "Your boss just
turned up"?

A. No.

Q. Would the workers just be minding their own business and
wouldn't say, "The boss just turned up"?

A. They wouldn't mention. They are just working.

Q. They wouldn't be gossiping about the boss, "The boss is
there, you have to watch out"? They wouldn't say that?

A. No. The only thing they would ask is when they are

going to get a raise.
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Q.

So people wouldn't be talking about the presence of the
boss?

No.

So nobody told you?

When I went there to the site, I would spend about

15 minutes or 30 minutes there. If there is anything
special, like one of our workers did needs a certain
thing, then I would be told about it.

Mr Ho is very talkative, isn't it? He is very chatty,
isn't he?

Mr Ho being chatty? Well, we are the subordinates. We
don't chat much.

Mr Wong Kwai Hung, he was your master, wasn't he, at the
beginning?

Well, he was my boss also.

You learned from him?

Yes.

As time went by, you were doing things different to what
he does, and you don't actually do the actual plumbing
work. You wouldn't be stationed on one particular site,
and you were beginning to get to grips with the
management side of things.

Yes.

How would you see Mr Wong? Your master, your friend or

your subordinate?
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A. Yes, friends. When I visit the sites, I visited his
sites quite often.

Q. Would you chat with him quite a bit?

A. Yes, I would.

Q. The workers are minding their own business, but Mr Wong
saw you move up, and you tend to talk about work when
you chat with him?

A. Not much.

Q. Outside of work?

A. No.

Q. You would chat with him? It would be different from
some acquaintances, some other workers?

A. I wouldn't stay long on the site. I would be moving
around the sites. I would be driving around the sites.
The sites are pretty far apart.

Q. So you would be visiting the sites on your own?

A. Yes, on my own.

Q. After delivery of the materials, like the plumbing
materials, if you were there you would sign and take
delivery?

A. Yes.

Q. Where would you store the materials?

A. I would put them in the site office.

Q. But you wouldn't check the quantities?

A. I wouldn't, no.
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Q.

Mr Yeung showed some DNs to you. Let's have a look at
bundle S, page 105. This is an invoice from Prosperity.
Do you know what company Prosperity is?

I know.

You know now. What about then, when you were working on
Kwai Luen and Kai Ching-?

Yes, I did.

The supplier?

Yes. Their trucks will turn up on the site quite a lot.
When you first joined HBK, HBK already used Prosperity?
I didn't know at the time.

But for procurement and ordering materials, that's not
within your remit?

No.

You knew about Prosperity because Prosperity would
deliver the materials to the site; that's why you know
about Prosperity. This invoice is addressed to HBK, and
the contact person, Ms Chung, is one of your colleagues.
This "Mr Leung" here, that was put there by Prosperity.
We would like to find out who this Mr Leung is supposed
to mean. From your understanding, when "Mr Leung"
appears on the document, would it be you?

No.

Would there be another colleague?

Yes, another colleague.
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Q. A Mr Leung responsible for accounting?

A. He's in the accounting department. Exactly what he
does, I don't know.

Q. So there is another Mr Leung in the head office?

A. Yes.

Q. Page 104. Let's have a look at the DN. You took
delivery. You signed on the DN and you checked the
consignment?

A. Yes. We asked one of the workers to get the document,
to check the materials. I had a meeting with Mr Wong.
Otherwise, Mr Wong would have come down and took
delivery.

Q. So Mr Wong wasn't there?

A. He was in the office. He was on the site. He was in
the site office. I had a meeting with him. Mr Wong

asked a colleague to take delivery. And he was checki

Day 39

ng

these against the request form, and then I signed on the

form.

Q. So the act of checking the materials wasn't you; it
wasn't done by you?

A. Well, I mean, on that day the vehicles were being cha
away.

CHAIRMAN: Are you saying that you signed there and then
walked off, and your workers were still taking

deliveries; is that what you mean?
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A. They have only checked the consignment. When I was
there, I asked them whether they have checked.

CHAIRMAN: So you just signed on the form and then you
walked off.

MR SHIEH: You trusted the workers that they have already
checked the materials against the request form and also
this DN and there were no problems; everything was in
order. Then you just took them on trust, you signed
there and then you walked away?

A. Yes.

CHAIRMAN: Why do you remember all these details? Why do
you remember all of this?

A. I was on the site to talk about reserving some space for
the pipes, for the piping sheath.

CHAIRMAN: This is a very common occurrence. If you ask me
what case I was sitting judgment on on 25 April 2013,

I can't quite remember.

A. I hardly ever signed on the form.

CHAIRMAN: That's all the more reason why you wouldn't
remember.

A. Well, that truck was actually blocking me.

MR SHIEH: There was another example. Let's turn to
page 180. At page 180, we have another delivery note.
Here, the label has Wong Kwai Hung and yourself as the

contact person, and it's your signature down there?
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A. Yes.
Q. Now, on this occasion, do you recall what occurred? Did

you have to take delivery or did you rely or place your
trust in the site staff, that they had counted the goods
and took delivery?

Yes.

This is for Kai Ching Estate. The previous one was
Kwai Luen. So you are saying these two delivery notes
with your signature, you weren't the one taking
delivery; you just signed and you relied on information
provided to you?

This one, I have no recollection. I might have counted
the goods.

Well, in your daily work at the construction sites, if
there is a delivery, is that something -- would you
normally take delivery?

No.

So it's not because you counted the goods and you
attached your signature; you just placed your trust in
the construction site staff?

(Nodded head) .

Okay. In this delivery note, we have the WL50 flat
strip. On page 104, there's also another item, the WL50
solder strip, the previous document, page 104. Do you

see that?
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A. Yes.
Q. I would like to ask you, when you signed the delivery

A.

note, did you take a look at the goods description?

I took a look.

What do you mean when you say you took a look?

I looked at what goods were being delivered.

It was the only information?

Yes.

So if something stood out, if there was something
extraordinary, you would raise questions?

Right.

So, when you see the description "WL50 solder strip",
did you notice -- did that raise any flags?

No, not at that time.

So, according to your understanding, in your experience,
they would use solder to connect pipes, but in

Ho Biu Kee, they would use solder material? Regardless
of what material it is, do you know that Ho Biu Kee's
engineering projects use solder material?

Yes, I'm aware.

So do you know the officer in charge or the people
filling out material request forms, how would they
describe this type of solder material in filling out the
request form?

I don't know. I don't know, because when they filled
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the form and faxed it to the office, I don't look at the
faxes.

Q. Well, have you filled out a request form?

A. I have no recollection.

Q. Let me show you something. Mr Chan Siu Wah's witness
statement. K3/2391.

First of all, in his paragraph 8, Chan Siu Wah says
you and Wong Kwai Hung were the contractors for blocks 1
and 2. Were you the contractors for blocks 1 and 27

A. No, because I have never contracted work out. How can
I be a contractor?

Q. When say contracting work, it's not on behalf of the
company, you are not recruiting staff on behalf of the
company. There is a contractor who recruits workers and
pays them on a piece rate; you are aware of that?

A. Yes.

Q. So you are saying you are not the contractor of blocks 1
and 2.

A. Yes.

Q. So, to your understanding, who's the contractor of
blocks 1 and 2? 1Is there a contractor? Has somebody
subcontracted the work out?

A. Not in my recollection.

Q. Please turn to paragraph 12. This is Chan Siu Wah's

version. He says:
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"Sundry items in Kai Ching Estate including
soldering material, this was procured from Ho Biu Kee
procurement department. I placed the order."

That is Chan Siu Wah placed the order. Then:

"Ho Biu Kee procurement procured it from Prosperity.
But towards the end of the construction [it should be
2012, not 2013], between September and October, the
plumbing works were going full steam ahead, so Wong
Kwai Hung, Leung Wai Kin and Fan Sau Peng, in the blocks
that they were responsible for, they had to place
procurement orders to Ho Biu Kee and did not have to do
so through me. Since Wong Kwai Hung, Leung Wai Kin and
Fan Sau Peng, they have worked with Ho Biu Kee for many
years, they are on very intimate terms with Ho Man Piu.
So at that time the boss, Ho Man Piu, he knew and
allowed them to place orders directly."

So usually, does the officer in charge fill out the
request form and fax it to the office?

A. Yes.

Q. And the Kai Ching officer in charge is Chan Siu Wah.
A. Yes.

Q. So Chan Siu Wah would fill out the form and fax it.
A. Yes.

Q. So were there circumstances when you couldn't find

an officer in charge and there were people with
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sufficient authority, they could be workers or
contractors or whatever, a person in charge, they would
fill out material request form on behalf of Chan Siu Wah
and fax it to the office? Did that occur, even though
it is not very frequent?

A. Are you saying Chan Siu Wah's staff? I don't know.

I don't know.

Q. They would fax these request forms back to the office.
Have you done that?

A. Usually the officer in charge will fill out the form and
fax it himself. Assuming there are ten sites, I have to
go to ten sites in a day. So the officer in charge will
have to fill it out and send it to the office.

Q. We are not saying that you were responsible for
monitoring and inspecting and then you have to follow
up, but what if there was a rush, you were too busy,
there was a contractor in blocks 1 and 2 and he needed
certain materials so he didn't want to bother the
officer in charge and he would fill it out himself and
fax it to the office -- did that ever occur?

A. DNormally, these weren't filled out by anybody. If that

were the case, then anybody could place orders.

Q. "Leung Wai Kin also placed orders with Ho Biu Kee's
procurement department." So how do you respond to this
allegation?
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A.

Well, blocks 1 and 2 of Kai Ching Estate, Mr Wong and

I were responsible for supervision.

What do you mean?

Well, we were monitoring and managing the site.

Mr Wong, he was my mentor, but at that time, we were
doing our separate jobs. I had been promoted; I was not
under Mr Wong anymore.

So Mr Wong managed blocks 1 and 2.

Yes.

You were also managing but not just limited to blocks 1
and 2; you were managing many projects.

Yes.

Coming back to this problem, you had not filled out
these forms and sent these to the office?

I don't think so, no.

As a matter of fact, did you or not?

Not in my recollection.

But even if you did, it was an exception?

I don't think so. I was already at management level.

I wasn't -- when you fill up request forms, you have to
check the parts, you have to check what material needs
to be procured.

You mean it is a hands-on person who would know?

Not necessarily. Well, the officer in charge, if you

are working on floors 1 and 2, then you would be able to
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follow up. I have completed part A and I may need to
work on part B, and then you would be able to fill up
the material you need.

Q. When I say "hands on", that might not be accurate. You
need to be intimately involved with the project in order
to understand what material is needed?

A. Yes.

Q. A 15-minute inspection would not suffice?

A. That's correct, because there are many areas, not just
water inlet. There is also water outlet, the sanitary
and all kinds of --

CHAIRMAN: Well, aside from the material request form, the
officers, for example, in Kai Ching Estate, the officer
in charge needs to manage six blocks?

A. Correct.

CHAIRMAN: 1In Kai Ching, there are six blocks. The
supervisor might only manage one or two sites. So the
foremen would have to tell the officer in charge, and
then the officer in charge would fax the form back to
the office?

A. No. The foreman will not notify the officer. The
officer in charge places the order.

CHAIRMAN: I know. For example, Wong Kwai Hung, in blocks 1
and 2, he needs some more material, so would he do it

himself or ask Chan Siu Wah?
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A. He would ask Chan Siu Wah.

MR SHIEH: So you report up the chain of command? Chan
Siu Wah is the officer in charge. He knows what
material is needed, because the foreman in blocks 1
and 2 tell us what is needed.

A. Yes.

Q. So you are telling me that in blocks 1 and 2 the foreman
is Mr Wong, so the proper method is that Mr Wong should
tell Chan Siu Wah, "We need four boxes or ten rolls",
and then Chan Siu Wah would act on that information, and
that would be the proper way?

A. Yes. Blocks 1 and 2 were in the last phases. There
were six blocks. 3 and 4 were built first, then blocks
5 and 6, and blocks 1 and 2 were falling behind, and
Chan Siu Wah was placing orders for blocks 1 and 2.

Q. But it's still possible that he had run out of material,
and that the leftover material was not enough for blocks
1 and 2 and he would need to add some orders. So
Mr Wong would tell Chan Siu Wah there's a material
shortage?

A. Yes, that would be the process.

CHAIRMAN: At that time, since you mention that blocks 3
and 4 went first, was it because of a rush and the works
had to be subcontracted out?

A. Do you mean -- well, when block 3 went first, there was
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sufficient time for blocks 3 and 4.

CHAIRMAN: Then why did you have to arrange for a piece-rate
salary? Why did you have to make a salary adjustment?
Because we know that blocks 3 and 4, that work was
subcontracted to Chan Sze Nam.

A. Yes. (Chinese spoken).

CHAIRMAN: Basically, he worked on the corridors. A lot of
things were actually outsourced to him.

MR SHIEH: So were you aware that they were outsourced to
him? Do you know something was subcontracted to Chan
Sze Nam?

A. T did.

CHAIRMAN: Mr Chan Siu Wah told us that Chan Sze Nam
contracted all of this work; he didn't want to do the
roof and the domestic unit, nor the precast units.

MR SHIEH: Please tell us, for blocks 3 and 4, what items
have been subcontracted to Chan Sze Nam?

A. As far as I know, the domestic units, the outer wall,
the drainage pipes, the connection within the units.
The corridor, as far as I know, it was the company that
did it, but for others, it was subcontracted to Chan
Sze Nam.

I am not sure how they came to an agreement. There
were a lot of things that were not included.

CHAIRMAN: Chan Siu Wah and Chan Sze Nam negotiated over
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what procedures would be subcontracted to Chan Sze Nam.

A. Yes, and they would ask them for a quotation, and
I think this is something between them.

MR SHIEH: Who approached Chan Sze Nam? Was it Mr Ho or
Mr Chan Siu Wah? Who approached Mr Chan Sze Nam?

A. I think it was Mr Chan Siu Wah who approached Mr Chan
Sze Nam. They know each other very well.

CHAIRMAN: We don't know what Chan Siu Wah has subcontracted
to Chan Sze Nam, and Chan Sze Nam is chasing Ho Man Piu
for hundreds of thousands of dollars in payment.

MR SHIEH: Do you know about this? Do you know Mr Ho is
being chased for payment?

A. I don't know. Blocks 3 and 4 came first. We came in
much later. As to what we agreed on, I think you had
better ask Mr Chan Siu Wah.

Q. When did you first become involved with Kai Ching?

A. It was April 2012.

Q. How many blocks were there?

A. Six blocks were there.

Q. But what about the plumbing work? When did you start?
The six blocks going together, going at the same time,
were the six blocks there, already built? When you came
in, you did the plumbing, did you start on the six at
the same time?

A. Blocks 3 and 4 went first.
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Q.

My next question for you is, what criteria would you
adopt to decide what part of the plumbing work would be
contracted out or what part of the plumbing work would
be taken on by the company? Who took the decision?

You mean subcontracting?

Yes. Who decided what work would be subcontracted and
what part of work would not be subcontracted? Who took
the decision, and what criteria would be adopted for the
decision?

At that time, Kai Tak was being built. There were so
many projects outside. The labour was a bit tight. You
may be able to get a contractor, and the contractor
would talk with the officer in charge and decide on what
part of the work would be subcontracted, and it's not

a case of handing over the entire project to them; it's
something between the officer in charge and the

contractor.

CHAIRMAN: For Kai Ching Estate, Mr Ho Man Piu said that,

"You had better not ask me, you had better ask Leung

Wai Kin." Ho Man Piu said that nobody can hide behind

a lack of awareness. He told his subordinates to tell
it like it is. He said, "You'wve got to ask my
subordinates, I'm telling them to tell it like it is and
nothing will be hidden." That's from your boss.

Let me put this to you now. For blocks 3 and 4, who
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MR

Q.

A.

took the decision to subcontract the work?

Blocks 3 and 4, subcontracting?

Subcontracting part of the procedures to Chan Sze Nam,
and not taken up by the company -- who took the decision
to subcontract?

Are you saying they are subcontracting to someone?
SHIEH: Whether to subcontract, the decision to
subcontract, who took the decision to subcontract? It
doesn't matter who the subcontractor was.

Me. I took the decision.

You personally?

Right.

CHAIRMAN: You?

A.

Yes.

CHAIRMAN: All right. So what criteria do you have to

determine subcontracting part of the work for blocks 3
and 4°?

Chan Siu Wah was in charge of six blocks, and there was
a car park and a shopping mall. We subcontracted
because we didn't have to look for so many workers, we
couldn't manage with just 20 or 30 workers, and we would
ask whether they have a team of workers. That would
minimise the time spent on looking for the workers. If
it's taken on by the company, we have to find the

workers.
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CHAIRMAN: All right. So that was the decision you took,
you told Chan Siu Wah about it, and then Chan Siu Wah,
and Chan Sze Nam -- who identified Chan Sze Nam? Was it
Chan Siu wWahv?

A. Chan Siu Wah identified Chan Sze Nam.

CHAIRMAN: Right, and between them, they negotiated as to
what part of the work would be subcontracted to Chan
Sze Nam and what part of the work would be taken on by
the company; is that the case?

A. Right.

MR SHIEH: So you took the decision that you could farm off
some of the work. As to what part would be taken on, it
would be negotiated between them?

A. Yes. They would have a quotation. Let's say they cover
certain floors and not certain floors.

CHAIRMAN: Who determined the cost?

A. Sorry?

Q. Who determined the cost? For these procedures, like,
for instance installation of sink and the WC, together
with the traps, if they farm it out, who would determine
the cost, the pricing?

A. You mean farming out?

CHAIRMAN: Yes, farming out, who determined the costs?

A. This is negotiable. I would talk with my boss at the

office.
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CHAIRMAN: Who would be part of the negotiation?

A. I would talk to my boss. With a certain price --

Q. Hang on a second. Chan Sze Nam, he has to be involved
in the negotiation, but who would Chan Sze Nam talk to?

A. Chan Siu Wah.

CHAIRMAN: Right, he talked to Chan Siu Wah. After
negotiation, he came up with a price, and he would tell
you or he would tell Ho Man Piu or both?

A. He would tell me.

CHAIRMAN: And what next? What would you do?

A. Let's say with a man-day, how many man-days would be
needed, and then we would work out the cost per unit.

CHAIRMAN: Then you presented your analysis to Ho Man Piu
and he would see whether he would give the approval.

So ultimately it was Mr Ho who took the decision?

A. No, it was me who took the decision. If, in the market,
we need to pay this much and this many man-days, I will
talk to my boss, and my boss would know about this
subcontractor.

MR SHIEH: You would notify him, but as to the pricing and
the subcontractor, it's your decision, isn't it?

A. Yes.

Q. Generally speaking, if it is taken on by the company,
then the company would pay a certain fixed salary?

A. Yes.
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Q. However much they do, they will get paid this much?

A. Yes.

Q. But for subcontracting, it would be a different story;
the more they work, the more they get paid?

A. Yes.

Q. The faster they work, it would be in their interest. Do
you think that this would be an incentive, because the
faster they work, they get paid more? For the
subcontractor who has taken on this work, there would be
an incentive for him to use materials that would enable
him to get the job done fast?

A. I daren't comment on this.

Q. If Mr Chan Sze Nam and Chan Siu Wah know each other so
well, for whatever reason, Chan Siu Wah may have the
incentive to see the part undertaken by Mr Chan Sze Nam
completed as soon as possible, and they may be going for
certain materials that enable them to get the job done
fast, like the soldering materials that can melt faster?

A. I don't rule out this possibility.

Q. You don't rule out this possibility?

A. I can't really comment.

Q. Chan Sze Nam and Chan Siu Wah, this partnership, would
it appear in other housing estates? Lung Yat Estate,
did this partnership appear?

A. Lung Yat, I don't know, because after I got promoted,
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I had the community hall left to be completed. Two
blocks were completed and the community hall was still
outstanding.

Q. So Chan Siu Wah was officer in charge, and Chan Sze Nam
took over some of the work, and that partnership
occurred in Kai Ching only?

COMMISSIONER LAI: This arrangement, for blocks 3 and 4 --
what about 1 and 2 and 5 and 6? Does this arrangement
exist?

A. Blocks 5 and 6, also subcontracting, yes. But that
involved Mr Fan. There was a similar arrangement.

COMMISSIONER LAI: Can you elaborate on the arrangement;
also subcontracting to Mr Fan?

A. No. Fan Sau Peng is part of the company, but he got
hold of some of the skilled workers, and the
subcontracting arrangement was --

COMMISSIONER LAI: Similar to the Chan Sze Nam model.

A. Right.

MR SHIEH: But Mr Fan wasn't an outsider; he was part of the
company.

A. Yes.

CHAIRMAN: The same can be said about Chan Siu Wah.

Mr Fan identified someone who is not from HBK, he
got a subcontractor.

A. Right.

- 101 -

Transcript by DTI Corporation Asia, Limited



Annex: Realtime English Transcription based on floor / Simultaneous Interpretation

Commission of Inquiry into
Excess Lead Found in Drinking Water Day 39

CHAIRMAN: And that one is a member of HBK, so he is in the
same situation as Chan Sze Nam, albeit it with a
different name. Are you with me?

A. No.

MR SHIEH: Blocks 5 and 6, it was Mr Fan who identified
someone to take up some of the work?

A. No. Mr Fan identified someone who had been helping
Mr Fan himself. He just took over some of the work.

COMMISSIONER LAI: TIs he on HBK's staff?

A. No. He was a contractor of HBK.

CHAIRMAN: 1It's the same story as Chan Sze Nam.

Are you done with this?

MR SHIEH: No.

CHAIRMAN: Let's take a break.

(3.44 pm)

(A short adjournment)

(4.03 pm)

MR SHIEH: Mr Leung, I would like to direct you to Mr Ho's
statement, K1, page 23. This is Mr Ho's statement. In
the bottom right-hand corner, he has written down
whatever has been subcontracted out. The PVC has been
subcontracted to a person, Wong Lau Mau.

A. It's a plastic tube.

Q. PVC, it's been subcontracted to Wong Lau Mau.

A. Yes.
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Q. On the next page, blocks 3 and 4, the plumbing other
than roof has been subcontracted to Chan Sze Nam?

A. No.

Q. Plumbing other than roof, aside from the roof, it's
Mr Chan Sze Nam?

A. Correct.

Q. Then we have Leung Wai Keung for blocks 3 and 4, and
blocks 5 and 6 were Mr Tung Yam Wai; right?

A. Yes.

Q. So this Mr Tung was recruited by Mr Fan.

A. A long time.

Q. Okay. So we will set aside Kl1.

Are you aware that Mr Chan Siu Wah had said some
things regarding yourself, so I'll set them out for you
to respond. First of all, Mr Chan Siu Wah -- K3,
page 2398, paragraph 36. He said:

"In reality, people do not call them soldering
material. The majority of people, whether it is strips
or rolls, they just call it 'solder strips'."

How would you respond to that statement? How do you
refer to that material?

A. Well, I personally call it "solder".
Q. You don't discriminate between strips or wires?
A. No, because in the past, as an apprentice, initially we

called it "internal solder".
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Q.

Have you heard of high-temperature or low-temperature
solder?

No, I have never heard of that.

So the green rolls that I showed you just now -- just
now I showed you this green roll (indicating) -- and the
strips that I showed you, at the time, were you familiar
with their brand name, their composition, the
characteristics; did you know anything?

No.

You didn't know a thing about it?

Because --

Yes, you were an apprentice, you had internal solder
components, so price and --

I wasn't aware of price.

Application, how convenient it was to use, you had no
idea.

I also have one paragraph I would like to confirm
with you. It's paragraph 42. This is Mr Chan Siu Wah.
He said that according to Ho Biu Kee's instructions,

a certain diameter of copper pipe has to be soldered
with an LPG gas torch, and a certain diameter has to be
soldered with an oxyacetylene torch.

So before each construction site, Mr Kwong would
have to discuss with the officer in charge and the

subcontractors and give them instruction. That's what
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Mr Chan Siu Wah --

A. I'm not a contractor.

Q. I understand, but he says that Mr Kwong, before the
works begin, they would have to give instructions. So
in your recollection, did Mr Kwong give you a phone call
and tell you which types of pipes needed silver brazing
and which ones needed soldering?

A. No.

Q. I would now like to direct you to bundle H1l, page 122,
the email that I showed you just now.

Just now you said the email, you had received this
but you have no recollection.

A. Because at that time, I received more than 200 emails,
and even on my phone right now I have more than 6,000
emails.

Q. So you used your mobile phone to check email, not even
sit in front of a PC? So you would check your email on
the road-?

A. Yes, when I have my Wi-Fi on I can receive email.

Q. I know everybody's habits are different. Some people
will open everything, including attachments. Some
people will just look at the heading and decide whether
to open the email. Some people will see whether they
are the main recipient or they are carbon-copied. If

they are just copied, they might think it's not relevant
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to them. So what's your habit? How would you decide
whether you would read an email?

A. I will first look at the topic and see what the subject
is about, otherwise -- my emails will talk about safety,
and so on.

Q. So the topic here is "Approval Material Form", and you
are aware that it's related to material approval
application, and you are aware that Mr Kwong submits the
material list. So, when you receive this type of
notification, that what material has been approved -- do
you receive this frequently?

A. Yes. Different construction sites, we receive all kinds
of information.

Q. So the purpose is Jjust to notify you. So if you don't
open the email, would you feel that you would have made
an omission? "Shui On has decided that I would be
a contact point with Ho Biu Kee and they sent me
this email" -- you don't forward the email, you just let
the email sit on your email server?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you ever considered that should there be any
actionable email, and you have left this untouched, then
nobody would know?

A. I have never followed up on this. In my understanding,

it would not --

- 106 -

Transcript by DTI Corporation Asia, Limited



Annex: Realtime English Transcription based on floor / Simultaneous Interpretation

Commission of Inquiry into

Excess Lead Found in Drinking Water Day 39

Q. You just said that it was sent to you frequently.

A. Well, everybody sends me email. First of all, it's not
my responsibility. Even if I read it, I would just take
note. Different sites have different material.

I cannot open all emails otherwise I have to open
schematics and drawings. There's a lot of other
information, safety information. So even after work,
after dinner, I would have to read emails all the way up
to midnight because we have hundreds of emails per day.

Q. I will ask you straight to the point: according to your
understanding, procurement staff, how could they ensure
that the products they ordered were in compliance with
the items approved by the Housing Authority, how do the
brands and models match?

A. (Chinese spoken).

Q. So you are saying Mr Kwong should be responsible?

A. No, in my understanding, let's say I email the
counterparty and you are the counterparty, you should
forward it back to me. You wouldn't forward it to any
third party and let them follow up.

So, from my perspective --
Q. So when you say counterparty, Shui On's counterparty --
A. Yes, an engineering department, an engineer should

follow up on this.

So Mr Kwong, for example, emailed it to person A.
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Then person A would submit it to the Housing Department.
The Housing Department would approve Shui On, and then
Shui On should respond back to Kevin.

So, if I send you something --

Q. You are saying, since Kevin submitted material to the
Housing Department, and it has been approved, then
Shui On should notify him?

A. I would have placed the document in the tray and when he
received it, the driver would pick it up and send it
back to the office.

Q. The send, Mr Man, do you know him?

A. Yes, I know him.

Q. Do you know why he only sent it to you? Because I know
some people have bad habits, they would carbon copy
everybody, but in fact he only sent this email to you.
Did you investigate why he only sent this to you, why he
didn't send it to Kevin, or is it a matter of choice and
it's not your responsibility?

A. Well, I might be on a phone call, and then I receive
this email. I tell people I'm busy, I'm on the phone,
and you have to email to me and I'll have to deal with
it later.

Q. So you receive this, but you are not the proper
counterparty, so you should have told Mr Man, "Don't

keep sending this stuff, you are stuffing up my
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mailbox", or did you think that you should also send --
you would automatically send a copy to Mr Kwong?
A. I had talked about that. I said that -- Mr Man said, as
a representative of HBK, they would send things to me.
Q. 17 December, let me show you the record of the hearing.
Page 122.

Here, page 122, this is one of the witnesses from
Shui On, Mr Au testified. Page 123, the chairman put
this to the witness, at L:

"I would like to ask whether he knows that this is
with regard to Wong Kwai Hung, he [Wong Kwai Hung],
whether he knows that what was submitted to the HD was
FRY 99cC."

The witness is Wan Wai Ho, have you ever heard of
this person? Page 166, this is Wan Wai Ho from Shui On.
Page 166 refers to his name.

A. At L7

Q. Yes. The chairman asked -- he asked Mr Wan Wai Ho
whether Mr Wong Kwai Hung knew that it was FRY 99C that
was submitted to the HD. Mr Wan said he must know,
"Because according to the record of 3 June, we emailed
to Ah Kin and Ah Kin was the officer in charge, together
with Wong Kwai Hung. They sat in the same office.
There is no reason why Ah Kin knew and he didn't."

Page 123. Please turn to page 123.
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A. Yes.
Q. You see this Wan Wai Ho -- you see the reply by Mr Wan

Wai Ho? This witness from Shui On, his argument is that
he sent an email to Ah Kin, that's your goodself, and
Ah Kin was officer in charge, together with Wong

Kwai Hung. Let's not get bogged down with this term
"officer in charge". You work closely with Mr Wong, in
essence. You worked in the same office. There is no
reason why Ah Kin knew and Wong Kwai Hung didn't. There
were two officers in charge in the same container box.
The witness said that both of you were officers in
charge. How do you respond to this? This is a Shui On
project.

No, I'm not officer in charge.

We know that Wong Kwai Hung as not officer in charge.
Yes.

You were not?

No.

But would you appear there very often?

I would turn up for meetings but not very often.

Shui On relied on the email. He said the email was sent
to you, he assumed you knew, and there was no reason why
Wong Kwai Hung didn't know. By sending the email to
you, he assumed you knew. How would you respond to

that?
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A. By sending me the email, he assumed that I knew, then
I can't even sleep for 24 hours.

Q. Since you knew, Wong Kwai Hung was so close to you, Wong
Kwai Hung should know, Wong Kwai Hung was going to
testify soon. I don't think you would be talking with
Wong Kwai Hung about these approval things.

A. No.

Q. So you disagree with this witness. Just because
an email was sent to you, therefore you knew. You
wouldn't agree that Wong Kwai Hung knew?

A. Every time I saw him, he was in the BS office. There
was no container box. It was built up.

Q. I was referring to the meeting place.

There is a bit of investigative work I would like
you to undertake. A3. Please have a look at tab 44,
page 2409. Here are the 11 affected estates, and this
is an analysis of the units and the blocks that have
water contaminated in excess of the standard. That's
for Kai Ching. On the right-hand side, red denotes
excess lead, and yellow denotes no excess of lead but in
a borderline situation.

Please have a look at the red: blocks 1, 2 and 3.
Do you know, blocks 1 and 2, what names they have been
assigned?

A. A number of them. I can't distinguish them, because
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they put the name there.
Q. Hong Ching for block 17
A. I remember Hong Ching.
Q. That's block 1.
A. Lok Ching.
Q. That's block 2.
A. Mun Ching.
Q. Mun Ching, that's block 5.
A. Yuet Ching.
Q. Yuet Ching, that's block 6.
A. And Sheung Ching.
Q. Yan Ching for block 3, Sheung Ching for block 4.

A. Yes.

Q. The first block, item 32, that's Sheung Ching House.

A. Yes.

Q. That's block 4.

A. Yes.

Day 39

Q. Further down, Hong Ching. Hong Ching got into trouble,

block 1.
A. Yes.
Q. Further down, 37, Hong Ching, also block 1.
A. Yes.
Q. Item 39, Lok Ching, block 2.
Blocks 1, 2 and 4, we saw excessive lead.

A. Yes.
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Q. Then item 43, Lok Ching, block 2.

A. Yes.

Q. So far, 1, 2 and 4 got into trouble with the water
quality.

A. Yes.

Q. Over the page, 2410, Mun Ching, item 57, excessive lead,
and that's block 5.

A. Yes.

Q. Then item 58, Lok Ching, also with excessive lead,
block 2.

A. Yes.

Q. There are two more red, for Hong Ching House, block 1.

A. Yes.

Q. If you look at the pattern, blocks 1 and 2 got into
trouble more.

A. Yes.

Q. Block 4, block 5.

A. Yes.

Q. But mostly the problem lies with blocks 1 and 2.

A. Yes.

Q. There are two blocks that were okay, 6 and 3.

A. Yes.

Q. They are okay, but 3 and 6 were subcontracted out.

A. Yes.

Q. Block 1 was taken on by the company itself, for the
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copper pipes.

A. Yes.

Q. Blocks 1 and 2, the copper pipes were undertaken by the
company, and there were problems with it.

I asked you whether there was a possibility that if
the jobs were contracted out in order to get the job
done fast, they would use cheaper soldering materials,
but statistically, the blocks that gave rise to problems
are not the subcontracted blocks but the company blocks.

A. For blocks 1 and 2, we had the precast units. So how do
you define the domestic units? I'm not sure this table
shows the units or the corridors.

Q. So you would make this distinction?

CHAIRMAN: Kitchen?

MR SHIEH: If you look at item 34, that's the kitchen, the
kitchen tap, item 34. That's the kitchen tap. And also
item 37, also kitchen tap. Item 39, that's the basin
tap of the toilet.

A. Yes.

CHAIRMAN: For blocks 1 and 2, you had the connection done
towards the end of the project?

A. Sorry, I didn't hear you.

CHAIRMAN: 3, 4, 5, 6, 1, 2, that's the sequence.

A. Yes.

CHAIRMAN: Blocks 1 and 2 came last.
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A. Yes.
CHAIRMAN: So you had to hand over the project. Was it
because you had to rush through the job, the project?

A. I don't think so. I don't think so.

Day 39

MR SHIEH: Not because of the rush job? And therefore you

ordered these alternative materials?
A. Not that much of a rush, no.
MR SHIEH: Chairman, I have no further questions.

CHAIRMAN: It's 4.30 now. Please hold your questions.

MR SHIEH: Chairman, the witness has to come back on Monday,

but on Monday we are supposed to have Mr Lam Tak Sum,
licensed plumber. He is in a wheelchair. He is
wheelchair-bound. So, for the morning, we would be
summoning Mr Lam Tak Sum. After Mr Lam, then we will
come back to Mr Leung, then Mr Wong and Madam Chiu.
CHAIRMAN: Mr Leung, can we invite him back on Monday

afternoon?

MR SHIEH: If we cannot complete Mr Lam in the morning, we

will continue in the afternoon, but we don't want to
waste time.

CHAIRMAN: I think it will take a while for Mr Lam.

MR SHIEH: So, Mr Leung, please come back in the afternoon.

WITNESS: It's up to you.
CHATIRMAN: Yes. Thank you.

(4.30 pm)
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(The hearing adjourned until 10.00 am the following day)
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Excess Lead Found in Drinking Water

INDEX

MR KEVIN KWONG KA FU (recalled, reaffirmed) ........
Further examination-in-chief by MR YEUNG ........
Further cross-examination by MR SHIEH ...........
Further cross-examination by MR LAM .............
(The witness withdrew) ...ttt it it eeneenn

MS WONG WAI PING (affirmed) .....uieeieeteeeenneens
Examination-in-chief by MR YEUNG ..........c0.....
Cross—-examination by MR SHIEH .........ccieeeuunn..
Cross-examination by MR PENNICOTT ..............
Cross-examination by MR LAM . ...ttt it iennenennnn
Further cross-examination by MR SHIEH ...........
Re-examination by MR YEUNG ......cuiiittiieneennnnn
(The witness withdrew) ...ttt ittt eeneen.

MR LEUNG WAI KIN (affirmed) ......iiuiinetineneennnns
Examination-in-chief by MR YEUNG ..........cc0.....

Cross-examination by MR SHIEH .........c0iieuun..
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